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NOTICE

NOTICE ISHEREBY GIVEN THAT THE 28™ (TWENTY EIGHTH) ANNUAL GENERAL MEET-
ING (AGM) OF THE MEMBERS OF GOLDEN CARPETS LTD WILL BE HELD ON FRIDAY,
THE 30™DAY OF SEPTEMBER 2022AT9.00A.M. (IST)AT THE HOTEL MARRIOTT, TANK
BUND ROAD, OPPOSITE HUSSAIN SAGAR LAKE, HYDERABAD-500080, TELANGANA,

INDIATO TRANSACT THE FOLLOWING BUSINESS:

ORDINARY BUSINESSES:

Item No. 1 - Adoption of Financial Statements for the financial year ended 31 March 2022:

To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements for the financial year ended 31+
March 2022along with the Auditors’ Report, Directors’ Report and schedules thereon.

Item No. 2 - To appoint adirector in place of Ms. Meena Bhushan Kerur, (DIN: 02454919) Director
of the Company who retires by rotation and being eligible, offers herself for re-appointment:

To appointadirector in place of Ms. Meena Bhushan Kerur(DIN: 02454919)who retires by rotation
and being eligible offers herself for re-appointment.Therefore, members are requested to consider and
if thought fit, to pass the following resolution as an ordinary resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 152 and other applicable provisions of
the Companies Act, 2013, Ms. Meena Bhushan Kerur (DIN: 02454919), who retires by rotation, be
and is hereby re-appointed as Director liable to retire by rotation.”

By order of the Board of Directors
For Golden Carpets Ltd
Place: Hyderabad
Date: 24.08.2022
Sd/-
SRIKRISHNA NAIK
Chairman & Managing Director
DIN: 01730236
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NOTES:

Keeping in view the outbreak of COVID-19 (CoronaVirus) pandemic, the AGM of the Company
will be held at the venue in accordance with the Guidelines as prescribed by the World Health
Organization maintaining social distancing norms and the venue being thoroughly sanitized
and the members are requested to wear mask all the time.

A member entitled to attend and vote at the meeting is entitled to appoint a proxy to attend and
poll to vote instead of himself / herself and such proxy need not be a member. The instrument
appointing a proxy should however be deposited at the registered Office of the Company not
less than 48 hours before the commencement of the meeting.

A person can act as proxy on behalf of Members not exceeding fifty (50) and holding in aggregate
not more than 10% of the total share capital of the Company. In case a proxy is proposed to be
appointed by a member holding more than 10% of the total share capital of the Company
carrying voting rights, then such proxy shall not act as a proxy for any other person or
shareholder.

Members are requested to kindly bring their copy of the annual report with them at the AGM, as
no extra copy of annual report would be made available at the AGM. Members/Proxies/
Authorized Representative should bring the Attendance slip enclosed herewith, duly completed
and signed, mentioning therein details of their DP ID and Client ID / Folio No.

In case of joint holders attending the Meeting, only such joint holder who is higher in the order
of names will be entitled to vote.

Pursuant to section 91 of the Companies Act, 2013 the register of members and share transfer
books of the Company will remain closed from 23"day September 2022 to 30" day September
2022(both days inclusive) for the purpose of Annual General Meeting.

Pursuant to Section 113 of the Companies Act, 2013, corporate members intending to appoint
authorized representatives to attend the meeting are requested to send a certified copy of the
Board Resolution authorizing their representative to attend and vote on their behalf at the
meeting.

As per Regulation 40 of SEBI Listing Regulation, as amended, securities of listed companies
can be transferred only in dematerialized form with effect from 1t April, 2019, except in case of
request received for transmission or transposition of Securities. In view of this and to eliminate
all risk associated with physical form shares and for ease of portfolio management, members
holding shares in physical form are requested to consider converting their holdings to
dematerialized form. Members can contact the Company or Company’s Registrars and Transfer
Agents, XL Softech Systems Limited, 3, Sagar Society, Road No.2, Banjara Hills, Hyderabad —
500034, Telangana, India for assistance in this regard.

Members may note that the Notice of the Twenty Eighth (28™") Annual General Meeting and the
Annual Report for Financial Year 2021-22, copies of audited financial statements, Directors’
Report, Auditors Report etc., will also be available on the website of the Company,

i.e.,www.goldencarpets.com.
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10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

Members holding shares in electronic mode are requested to keep their e-mail addresses updated
with the Depository participants.

Members holding shares in physical mode are requested to update their e-mail addresses,
name, and residential address by sending an email to the Registrar and Transfer Agent of the
Company at xIfield@gmail.com or by sending a letter at the address XL Softech Systems Limited,
3, Sagar Society, Road No.2, Banjara Hills, Hyderabad — 500034, Telangana, India.

Members desiring inspection of statutory registers during the AGM may send their request in
writing in advance to the Company at goldencarpetsitd@gmail.com.

Members who wish to inspect the relevant documents referred to in the Notice can send an e-
mail to goldencarpetsltd@gmail.comupto the date of the AGM.

The Company’s Equity shares are listed at BSE Ltd., Phiroze JeeJeebhoy Towers, Dalal Street,
Mumbai —400001, India and the Company has paid the Listing Fees to the said Stock Exchange.

As per Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI), it is now mandatory to furnish a Copy of
PAN Card to the Company or its RTA in the following cases viz. Transfer of Shares, Deletion of
Name, Transmission of Shares and Transposition of Shares. Shareholders are requested to
furnish copy of PAN card for all the above-mentioned transactions.

A Statement giving the details of the Director(s) seeking appointment/re-appointment in the
accompanying hotice, as required under Regulation 36 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and
disclosure requirements), Regulations, 2015 and Secretarial Standard - 2, is annexed thereto.

In compliance with the MCA Circulars and SEBI Circulars, Notice of the AGM along with the
Annual Report 2021-22 is being sent only through electronic mode to those Members whose
email addresses are registered with the Company/ Depositories. Members may note that the
Notice and Annual Report 2021-22 will also be available on the Company’s website

www.goldencarpets.com.

The Board of Directors of the Company has appointed Ms. Rashida Adenwala, Practicing
Company Secretary (M No: 4020), Founder Partner of R&A Associates, Hyderabad as Scrutinizer
to voting process (e-voting, ballot and poll) in a fair and transparent manner and Ms. Rashida
Adenwala has communicated her willingness to be appointed and will be available for same
purpose.

The Scrutinizer shall, after the conclusion of voting at the AGM, first count the votes cast
during the Meeting and, thereafter, unblock the votes cast through remote e-Voting, in the
presence of at least two witnesses not in the employment of the Company and shall make, not
later than 48 hours from the conclusion of the AGM, a Consolidated Scrutinizer’s Report of the
total votes cast in favour or against, if any, to the Chairman or a person authorised by him in
writing, who shall countersign thesame and declare the result of the voting forthwith.

The results declared along with the Consolidated Scrutinizer’s Report shall be placed on the
website of the Company www.goldencarpets.comand on the website of CDSL. The results
shall simultaneously be communicated to BSE Limited.
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20.

Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) are required to send
scanned copy (PDF/JPG Format) of the relevant Board Resolution/ Authority letter etc., together
with attested specimen signature of the duly authorized signatory(ies) who are authorized to
vote, to the Scrutinizer through e-mail to rashida@rna-cs.comwith a copy marked to

helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com.

VOTING THROUGH ELECTRONIC MEANS:

KD
0‘0

Pursuant to provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 20 of the
Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, as amended from time to time and
in pursuance with Regulation 44 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015 the Company is pleased to provide its members’ the facility of ‘remote e-
voting (e-voting from a place other than venue of AGM) to exercise their right to vote at the
28" Annual General Meeting (“AGM?”) by electronic means and the business may be transacted
through e-voting services provided by CDSL on all resolutions set forth in this Notice. The
members may cast their votes using an electronic voting system froma place other than the
venue of the meeting (‘remote e-voting’).

In order to enable its members, who do not have access to e-voting facility, to send their assent
or dissent in writing in respect of the resolutions as set out in the Notice of Annual General
Meeting, the Company has also enclosed a ballot form with the Annual Report for the financial
year 2021-22.

The facility for voting through polling paper shall be made available at the meeting and the
members attending the meeting who have not cast their vote by remote e-voting/ ballot form
shall be able to vote at the Meeting through polling paper.

A member can opt for only single mode of voting i.e., either through e-voting or by Ballot Form.
If a Member casts votes by both modes, e-voting shall prevail and vote by Ballot shall be treated
as invalid. The members who have cast their vote by remote e-voting/ballot form may also
attend the meeting but shall not be entitled to cast their vote again.

The Voting rights of the members shall be in proportion to the paid-up value of their shares in
the Equity Capital of the Company as on cut-off date (i.e., Record date) 22" September 2022.

A person, whose name is recorded in the register of members or in the register of beneficial
owners maintained by the depositories as on the cut-off date, i.e.,22nd September, 2022only
shall be entitled to avail the facility of remote e-voting,voting through ballot form and voting at
AGM through polling paper.

Members are requested to notify immediately any change in their addresses to the Company.

The e-voting facility will be available at the link www.evotingindia.comduring the following
period:
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Golden Carpets Limited A

—_—

COMMENCING FROM 27™ SEPTEMBER 2022, 9.00 A.M. (IST) TO 29™ SEPTEMBER 2022,5.00
P.M. (IST).

£

KD
*

E-voting shall not be allowedbeyond5.00 P.M. on29""September 2022and the remote e-voting
shall be blocked forthwith. During the e-voting period, Shareholders of the Company holding
shares either in physical form or in dematerialized form, as on 22"September 2022may cast
their vote electronically.

All grievances connected with the facility for voting by electronic means may be addressed to
Mr. Rakesh Dalvi, Sr. Manager, Central Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL), A Wing,
25th Floor, Marathon Futurex, Mafatlal Mill Compounds, N M Joshi Marg, Lower Parel
(East), Mumbai-400013, India or send an email to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or call
on Toll free number 1800 22 55 33.

The voting period begins from 9.00 A.M. (IST)on27""September 2022and ends at 5.00 P.M.
(IST) on 29""September 2022.During this period, shareholders of the Company holding shares
either in physical or in dematerialized form, as on the cut-off date, may cast their vote

electronically. The e-voting module shall be disabled by CDSL for voting thereafter.

Access through Depositories CDSL/NSDL e-Voting system in case of individual
shareholders holding shares in demat mode:

Type of shareholders Login Method

Individual Shareholders 1. Userswhohaveoptedfor CDSL Ead / Easestfacility, canlogin
holding securities in Demat through their existing user id and password. Option will
mode with CDSL Depository bemadeavailableto reach e-\Voting page without any further

authentication. The URL for userstologinto Eas / Easiest
are https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/home/login or visit
www.cddindia.comand click on Loginicon and select New
System Myess.

2. After successful login the Easi / Easiest user will be able to see
the e-VVoting option for eligible companies where the evoting is
in progress as per the information provided by company. On
clicking the evoting option, the user will be able to see e-Voting
page of the e-Voting service provider for casting your vote dur-
ing the remote e-Voting period. Additionally, there is also links
provided to access the system of all e-Voting Service Providers
i.e. CDSL/NSDL/KARVY/LINKINTIME, so that the user can
visit the e-Voting service providers’ website directly.

3. Ifthe user is not registered for Easi/Easiest, option to register is
available at https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/Registration/
Easi Registration

28" Annual Report 2021-2022 7



Golden Carpets Limited

Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting page by pro-
viding Demat Account Number and PAN No. from ae-Voting
link available on www.cdslindia.com home page or click on
https://evoting.cdslindia.com/Evoting/EvotingLogin The
system will authenticate the user by sending OTP on registered
Mobile & Email as recorded in the Demat Account. After suc-
cessful authentication, user will be able to see the e-VVoting op-
tion where the evoting is in progress and also able to directly
access the system of all e-Voting Service Providers.

Individual Shareholders
holding securities in demat
mode with NSDL Depositoryj

If you are already registered for NSDL IDeAS facility, please
visit the e-Services website of NSDL. Open web browser by
typing the following URL: https://eservices.nsdl.com either
on a Personal Computer or on a mobile. Once the home page of
e-Services is launched, click on the “Beneficial Owner” icon
under “Login” which is available under ‘IDeAS’ section. A
new screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID and
Password. After successful authentication, you will be able to
see e-Voting services. Click on “Access to e-Voting” under e-
Voting services and you will be able to see e-Voting page. Click
on company name or e-Voting service provider name and you
will be re-directed to e-Voting service provider website for cast-

ing your vote during the remote e-Voting period.

If the user is not registered for IDeAS e-Services, option to regis-
terisavailable at https://eservices.nsdl.com. Select “Register
Online for IDeAS “Portal or click at https://
eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp

Visit the e-VVoting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typ-
ing the following URL.: https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either
on a Personal Computer or on a mobile. Once the home page of
e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon “Login” which
isavailable under ‘Shareholder/Member’ section. A new screen
will open. You will have to enter your User ID (i.e. your sixteen
digit demat account number hold with NSDL), Password/OTP
and a Verification Code as shown on the screen. After success-
ful authentication, you will be redirected to NSDL Depository
site wherein you can see e-Voting page. Click on company name
or e-Voting service provider name and you will be redirected to
e-Voting service provider website for casting your vote during
the remote e-Voting period.

ndividual Shareholders
holding securities in demat
mode) login through their

You can also login using the login credentials of your demat
account through your Depository Participant registered with
NSDL/CDSL for e-Voting facility. After Successful login, you

28" Annual Report 2021-2022
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Depository Participants (DP) will be able to see e-Voting option. Once you click on e-Voting
option, you will be redirected to NSDL/CDSL Depository site
after successful authentication, wherein you can see e-Voting
feature. Click on company name or e-Voting service provider
name and you will be redirected to e-Voting service provider
website for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting pe-
riod.

Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve User ID/ Password are advised to use Forget
User ID and Forget Password option available at abovementioned website.

Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode for any technical issues
related to login through Depository i.e. CDSL and NSDL

Login type Helpdesk details

Individual Shareholders holding Members facing any technical issue in login can
securities in Demat mode with CDSL contact CDSL helpdesk by sending a request at
helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.comor contact at toll
free no. 1800 22 55 33

Individual Shareholders holding Members facing any technical issue in login can
securities in Demat mode with NSDL contact NSDL helpdesk by sending a request at
evoting@nsdl.co.in or call at toll free

no.: 1800 1020 990 and 1800 22 44 30

Access through CDSL e-Voting system in case of shareholders holding shares in physical mode
and non-individual shareholders in demat mode.

Login method for Remote e-Voting for Physical shareholders and shareholders other than individual
holding in Demat form:

1.  Theshareholders should log on to the e-voting website www.evotingindia.com.
2. Clickon “Shareholders” module.
3. Now enter your User ID

a) For CDSL.: 16 digits beneficiary ID,

b) For NSDL.: 8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digits Client ID,

c) Shareholders holding shares in Physical Form should enter Folio Number registered with
the Company.

4. Nextenter the Image Verification as displayed and Click on Login.

5.  If you are holding shares in demat form and had logged on to www.evotingindia.com and
voted on an earlier e-voting of any company, then your existing password is to be used.

6. Ifyou areafirst-time user follow the steps given below:

28" Annual Report 2021-2022 9
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For Physical shareholders and other than individual shareholders holding shares in
Demat.

PAN Enter your 10 digit alpha-numeric *PAN issued by Income Tax Department

(Applicable for both demat shareholders as well as physical shareholders)-

e Shareholders who have not updated their PAN with the Company/Depository
Participant are requested to use the sequence number sent by Company/RTA
or contact Company/RTA.

Divident Enter the Dividend Bank Details or Date of Birth (in dd/mm/yyyy format) as recorded
Bank in your demat account or in the company records in order to login.
Details e Ifboth the details are not recorded with the depository or company, please
or enter the member id / folio number in the Dividend Bank details field.
Date of Birth
(DOB)

10.
11.

12.
13.

14.
15.

16.

After entering these details appropriately, click on “SUBMIT” tab.

Shareholders holding shares in physical form will then directly reach the Company selection
screen. However, shareholders holding shares in demat form will now reach ‘Password
Creation’ menu wherein they are required to mandatorily enter their login password in the
new password field. Kindly note that this password is to be also used by the demat holders for
voting for resolutions of any other company on which they are eligible to vote, provided that
company opts for e-voting through CDSL platform. It is strongly recommended not to share
your password with any other person and take utmost care to keep your password confidential.

For shareholders holding shares in physical form, the details can be used only for e-voting on
the resolutions contained in this Notice.

Click on the EVSN for the relevant Golden Carpets Ltd on which you choose to vote.

On the voting page, you will see “RESOLUTION DESCRIPTION” and against the same the
option “YES/NO” for voting. Select the option YES or NO as desired. The option YES implies
that you assent to the Resolution and option NO implies that you dissent to the Resolution.

Click on the “RESOLUTIONS FILE LINK” if you wish to view the entire Resolution details.

After selecting the resolution, you have decided to vote on, click on “SUBMIT”. A confirmation
box will be displayed. If you wish to confirm your vote, click on “OK”, else to change your vote,
click on “CANCEL” and accordingly modify your vote.

Once you “CONFIRM” your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your vote.

You can also take a print of the votes cast by clicking on “Click here to print” option on the
Voting page.

If a demat account holder has forgotten the login password then Enter the User ID and the
image verification code and click on Forgot Password & enter the details as prompted by the
system.

10
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17.

18.

There is also an optional provision to upload BR/POA if any uploaded, which will be made
available to scrutinizer for verification.

Additional Facility for Non - Individual Shareholders and Custodians —-For Remote Voting
only.

Non-Individual shareholders (i.e. other than Individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) and Custodians are
required to log on to www.evotingindia.com and register themselves in the “Corporates”
module.

A scanned copy of the Registration Form bearing the stamp and sign of the entity should be
emailed to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com.

After receiving the login details a Compliance User should be created using the admin login
and password. The Compliance User would be able to link the account(s) for which they wish
to vote on.

The list of accounts linked in the login will be mapped automatically & can be delink in case of
any wrong mapping.

It is Mandatory that, a scanned copy of the Board Resolution and Power of Attorney (POA)
which they have issued in favour of the Custodian, if any, should be uploaded in PDF format
in the system for the scrutinizer to verify the same.

Alternatively Non Individual shareholders are required mandatory to send the relevant Board
Resolution/ Authority letter etc. together with attested specimen signature of the duly authorized
signatory who are authorized to vote, to the Scrutinizer and to the Company at the email
address viz; goldencarpetslitd@gmail.com, if they have voted from individual tab & not uploaded
same in the CDSL e-voting system for the scrutinizer to verify the same.

Process for those shareholders whose email/mobile no. are not registered with the Company/
Depositories.

1.

For Physical shareholders- please provide necessary details like Folio No., Name of shareholder,
scanned copy of the share certificate (front and back), PAN (self-attested scanned copy of PAN
card), AADHAR (self-attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) by email to Company/RTA email
id.

For Demat shareholders -, Please update your email id & mobile no. with your respective
Depository Participant (DP).

For Individual Demat shareholders — Please update your email id & mobile no. with your
respective Depository Participant (DP) which is mandatory while e-Voting & joining virtual
meetings through Depository.

If you have any queries or issues regarding e-VVoting from the CDSL e-Voting System, you can write
an email to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or contact at toll free no. 1800 22 55 33.

28" Annual Report 2021-2022 11



Y Golden Carpets Limited

e

Instructions and other information relating to Ballot Form:

1.

A member desiring to exercise voting by using Ballot Form shall complete the enclosed Ballot
Form with assent (FOR) or dissent (AGAINST) and send it to the Scrutinizer, Ms. Rashida
Adenwala, Practising Company Secretary, Partner at R&A Associates, Hyderabad, duly
appointed by the Board of Directors of the Company, to the given address Office No. T 202,
Technopolis, 1-10-74/B, Above Ratnadeep Super Market, Chikoti Gardens, Begumpet,
Hyderabad-500016, Telangana, India. Ballot Forms deposited in person or sent by post or
courier at the expense of the member will also be accepted at the Registered Office of the
Company.

Please convey your assent in Column “FOR” or dissent in the column “AGAINST” by placing
atick (*) mark in the appropriate column in the Ballot Form only. The assent / dissent received
in any other form / manner will not be considered.

Duly completed and signed Ballot Forms shall reach the Scrutinizer on or before 29""September
2022 (5.00 P.M. IST). The Ballot Forms received after the said date / time shall be strictly treated
as if the reply from the Member has not been received.

Unsigned/ incomplete Ballot Forms will be rejected. Scrutinizer’s decision on validity of the
Ballot Form shall be final.

A member may request duplicate Ballot Form, if so required, by writing to the Company at its
Registered Office or by sending an email on goldencarpetsitd@gmail.comby mentioning their
Folio No. /7 DP ID and Client ID. However, the duly filled in duplicate Ballot Form should reach
the scrutinizer not later than29t" September 2022(5.00 P.M. IST).

By order of the Board of Directors
For GOLDEN CARPETSLTD

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 24.08.2022

Sd/-
SRIKRISHNA NAIK
Managing Director
DIN: 01730236
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ANNEXURE TO ITEM NO.2

Details of Directors seeking re-appointment at the forthcoming
Annual General Meeting

(Pursuant to Regulation 36 of Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015)

Name of the Director

Meena Bhushan Kerur

DIN 02454919
Date of Birth 08/10/1963
Nationality Indian

Date of Appointment onthe Board 16/02/1995
Qualifications Graduate

Expertise in specificfunctional area

14 years of experience in various fields of Business

Number of shares held inthe Company

10,24,764

List of the directorships held in other

Companies

1. Golden Harvest International Private Limited

2. Golden Avenues Private Limited

Chairman/ Member in the Committees
of the Boardsof Companiesin
which heis Director*

NIL

Relationship of Directors inter-se

Sister of Mr.SriKrishna Naik

Number of Board Meetings attended
during the year

7(During the FY 2021-22)

*Committee memberships/Chairmanships includes only Audit Committee and Stake holders’
Relationship Committee of other Public Limited Companies (whether Listed or not).
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

Dear Shareholders,

We have pleasure in presenting the 28" (Twenty Eighth) Directors Report on the business and
operations of the Company and Financial Results for the year ended 31 March, 2022.

FINANCIAL RESULTS:

The financial performance of the Company for the financial year ended 31t March, 2022 is
summarized below:-

Rs. In Lakhs.
S.No | Particulars Year ended Year ended
31.03.2022 31.03.2021
1 Sales 59.16 91.35
2 Other Income 7.34 6.65
3 Total Income (1+2) 66.50 98.00
4 Total Expenses (Excluding Depreciation) 81.93 85.15
5 Depreciation 11.16 10.64
6 Profit/ (Loss) before tax (26.59) 2.21
7 Deferred Tax(Liability)/Asset (1.95) 0.69
8 Profit/(Loss) for the year after tax (24.65) 0.99
PERFORMANCE:

During the financial year ended as on 31March 2022, the Company recorded total revenue of Rs.
59.16 Lakhs as against Rs.91.35 Lakhs in the previous year and incurred Net Loss of Rs. 24.65Lakhsas
against the profit of Rs. 0.99 Lakhs in the previous year.

EVENTS SUBSEQUENT TO THE DATE OF FINANCIAL STATEMENT:

Unless as provided elsewhere in this Report, there were no significant material changes and
commitments affecting financial position of the company between 31 March 2022 and as on the
date of Board’s Report.

CHANGE IN THE NATURE OF BUSINESS IF ANY:
There was no change in the nature of business of the Company during the financial year.
SHARE CAPITAL:

The Authorized Share Capital of the Company as on 315t March 2022 was Rs. 10,50,00,000/- divided
into 1,05,00,000 equity shares of Rs. 10/- each.
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The issued share capital of the Company is Rs. 10,35,92,590/- divided into 1,03,59,259 equity shares
of Rs. 10/- each.

The listed share capital of the Company is Rs. 6,49,01,590/- divided into 64,90,159 Equity shares of
Rs. 10/- each.

The Paid-up Capital of the Company is Rs. 6,49,01,590/- divided into 64,90,159 Equity Shares of Rs.
10/- each.

Further, the difference of 99,600 Equity Shares between issued capital & listed capital represents the
unsubscribed shares in the public issue & the further difference of 37,69,500 Equity Shares is due to
forfeiture for non-payment of call money.

RESERVES:

Your Directors does not propose to carry any amount to General Reserve Account during the financial
year.

DIVIDEND:

Duringthe financial year under review, the Company has incurred losses and therefore no dividend
has been recommended by the Board.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT:

TheCompany’s paid-up equity share capital is less than Rs. 10 crores and net worth is less than Rs.
25 crores as on the last day of the previous financial year. As such, according to Regulation 15(2)(a)
of the SEBI(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,2015, the compliances
with respect to Corporate Governancedisclosures are not applicable to your Company. However,
yourCompany strives to incorporate the appropriate standards forCorporate Governance in the
interest of the stakeholders of theCompany.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT:

Management Discussion and Analysis Report for the year under review, as stipulated under
Regulation 34 of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015is presented in a separate section forming part
of the Annual Report.(Annexure-1).

DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL:
A.RETIREMENT BY ROTATION:

Pursuant to provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, Ms. Meena Bhushan Kerur(DIN: 02454919),
Director will retire at thisAnnual General Meeting and being eligible, offers herself for re-appointment.

The Board recommends herre-appointment.

B. APPOINTMENT AND CESSATION OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR:

No independent directorswere appointed or ceased to be the director of the Company.
C.APPOINTMENT OF COMPANY SECRETARY & COMPLIANCE OFFICER:

There was no change in Company Secretary & Compliance Officer of the Company during the
financial year under review.
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EVALUATION OF THE BOARD’S PERFORMANCE:

During the year, the Board adopted a formal performance evaluation policy for evaluating its
performance and as well as that of its committees and individual Directors, including the Chairman
of the Board. The exercise was carried out through a structured evaluation process covering various
aspects of the Board’s functioning such as composition of the Board & Committees, experience &
competencies, performance of specific duties & obligations etc. Separate exercise was carried out to
evaluate the performance of individual Directors including the Chairman. They were evaluated on
parameters such as attendance, contribution at the meetings and otherwise, independent judgment
etc. The evaluation of the Independent Directors and that of the Chairman was carried out by the
entire Board excluding the Director being evaluated and the evaluation of Non-Independent Directors
was carried out by the Independent Directors. A separate meeting of Independent Directors was also
held during the year wherein the performance of Chairman, Board and Executive Directors was
evaluated.

DECLARATION BY INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS:

All the Independent Directors of the Company have given declaration stating that they meet the
criteria of independence as provided under Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 16(1)(b) of theSEBI
(Listing Obligations and Disclosures Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

FAMILIARIZATION PROGRAMME OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS:

As required under Regulation 25(7) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosures Requirements)
Regulations, 2015, each newly appointed Independent Director is taken through a formal induction
program including the presentation from the Managing Director on the Company’s manufacturing,
marketing, finance and other important aspects.The induction for Independent Directors include
interactive sessions with Executive Committee members, Business and Functional Heads, visit to
the manufacturing site etc.

POLICIES:
i. REMUNERATIONPOLICY:

The Board on the recommendation of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee framed a
policy for selection and appointment of Directors, Senior Management and their remuneration
as required under Sec 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 19(4) read with Schedule
Il of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosures Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

ii. VIGIL MECHANISM/WHISTLE BLOWERPOLICY:

The Company has formulated a Whistle Blower policy and has established Vigil Mechanism
for employees including Directors of the Company to report genuine Concerns. The provisions
of this Policy are in line with the provisions of the Section 177(9) of the Act.

iii. POLICY ONBOARD DIVERSITY:

The Board on the recommendation of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee framed a
policy on Board Diversity as required Regulation 19(4) read with Part D of Schedule llof the
SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosures Requirements) Regulations, 2015.
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iv. RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY:

The Board of Directors has adopted an Enterprise Risk Management Policy framed by the
Company, whichidentifies the risk and lays down the risk minimization procedures. These
procedures are periodically reviewedto ensure that executive management controls risk through
means of a properly defined framework.

® PRESERVATION OF DOCUMENTS AND ARCHIVAL POLICY:

Vi.

Vi

The Company has formulated a Policy pursuant to Regulation 9 and 30(4) of the SEBI(Listing
obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 on Preservation of the Documents
to ensure safekeeping of the records and safeguard the documents from getting manhandled,
while at the same time avoiding superfluous inventory of documents.

POLICY ON DISCLOSURE OF MATERIALEVENTS/INFORMATION:

The Policy is framed in accordance with the requirements of the Regulation 30 of SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. The objective of the Policy is to
determine materiality of events or information of the Company and to ensure that such
information is adequately disseminated in pursuance with the Regulations and to provide an
overall governance framework for such determination of materiality.

POLICY ON RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS:

The Board of Directors has adopted a Policy on materiality of and dealing with related party
transactions. No material contract or arrangements with related parties were entered into
during the year under review.

Your Company'’s Policy on Related Party Transactions as adopted by your Board can be
accessed on the Company’s website.

. INSIDER TRADING POLICY:

The Board of Director has adopted the Insider Trading Policy in accordance with the
requirement of the SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015. The Insider Trading
policy of the Company lays down guidelines & procedures to be followed, and disclosures to
be made while dealing with the shares of the Company, as well as the consequences of the
violations. The policy has been formulated to regulate, monitor and ensure reporting of deals
by employees and to maintain highest ethical standards of dealing in Companies shares.

The Insider Trading policy of the Company covering code of practices and procedures for fair
disclosure of unpublished price sensitive information and code of conduct for preventing of
insider trading, same is available on our website.

AUDITORS & AUDITORS’ REPORT:

STATUTORY AUDITORS:

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 139 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the
Companies Act, 2013, read with rules made thereunder, M/s. TRM& Associates, Chartered
Accountants, were appointed as Statutory Auditor of the Company for a period of five years

28" Annual Report 2021-2022 17



Y Golden Carpets Limited

e

from the conclusion of 27""Annual General Meeting till the conclusion of 32"Annual General
Meeting and the remuneration payable shall be as may be agreed upon between the Board of
Directors and Auditors in addition to the reimbursement of service tax and actual out of
pocket expenses incurred in relation with the audit of accounts of the Company.

M/s. TRM & Associates, Chartered Accountants., Hyderabad were appointed as Statutory
Auditors in the 27" AGM for a period of 5 years until the conclusion of 32" AGM.

The Auditors’ Report does not contain any reservation, qualification or adverse remarks.

i. SECRETARIALAUDITOR:

During the financial year, the Company has appointed Mr. Akhil Mittal, Company Secretary
in Whole Time Practice, (Membership No. 38717, C P No. 21095)as Secretarial Auditor. The
Secretarial Audit report for the financial year 2021-22 is annexed herewith to this Report.
(Annexure-11).

Qualifications/ Remarks Replies
1.The Company has not appointed Internal Since your company’s operations are limited
Auditor as required under the provisions of and the company has not appointed an
Section 138 read with Rule 13 of the Internal Auditor during the financial year.
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. However, the Company has all the internal
control systemsin place to ensure proper
compliance.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT:

Pursuant to Section 134(5) of the Act, the Board of Directors, to the best of its knowledge and ability,
confirm that:

a)

b)

c)

d)

€)

in the preparation of the annual accounts for the financial year 2021-22, the applicable
accounting standards had been followed along with proper explanation relating to material
departures;

the Directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the company at the end of the financial year 2021-22and of the profit and
loss of the Company for the year 1% April 2021 to 31 March 2022;

the Directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company
and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

the Directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis;

the Directors had laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the Company and that
such internal financial controls are adequate and were operating effectively; and

the Directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all
applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

18
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NAMES OF THE SUBSIDIARIES/ASSOCIATES/JOINT VENTURES:

The Company has no subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies during the financial year
under review.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY:

The Company is not required to constitute a Corporate Social Responsibility Committee and formulate
policy on Corporate Social Responsibility as it does not fall within purview of Section 135(1) of the
Companies Act, 2013.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS:

There were no materially significant transactions with relatedparties during the financial year under
review, which were in conflict withthe interest of the Company. All the transactions entered into
bythe Company with Related Parties during year under review wereat arms-length basis. Disclosure
required under the AccountingStandard (IndAS 24) have been made in the notes to the
FinancialStatement.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE
EARNINGS AND OUTGO:

The particulars relating to conservation of energy, technology absorption, foreign exchange earnings
and outgo, is annexed and marked and forms part of this Report. (Annexure-I11).

INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS:

The Company has in place adequate internal financial controls commensurate with the size of its
business.

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS UNDER SECTION 186:

The Company has not given any loan, guarantee or provided security or made any investments
pursuant to the provisions of Section 186 of Companies Act, 2013.

DISCLOSURE PERTAINING TO SEXUAL HARRASMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE:

Your Company has always believed in providing a safe and harassment free workplace for every
individual working in premises through various interventions and practices. The Company always
endeavours to create and provide an environment that is free from discrimination and harassment
including sexual harassment.

Also, there were no complaints reported under the Prevention of Sexual Harassment of Women at
Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013.

DISCLOSURES:
i. ANNUAL RETURN:

Pursuant to Section 92 of the Act and Rule 12 of the Companies (Management and Administration)
Rules, 2014, the Annual Return is available on the website of the Company on the following link:-
https://www.goldencarpets.com/annualreports.html
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ii. NUMBER OF BOARD MEETINGS:

The Board of Directors of the Company met Seven (7) times during the financial yearand the gap
between two meetings did not exceed one hundred and twenty days. The dates on which the said
meetings were held are as follows:

22" June 2021; 29™ June 2021; 22" July 2021; 11" August 2021; 23 August 2021; 8" November
2021&31%January 2022.

(i) The names and categories of the Directors on the Board, their attendance at Board meetings
held during the financial year and the number of Directorships and committee chairmanships
/ memberships held by them in other public companies as on 31 March 2022are given herein

below:

Name of Category  |Number of Whether | Number | Number of

Director Board Meet- | attended | OfDirec- | Comittee
ings during the| lastAGM | torshipsin | position held
year 2021-22 | heldon other in other Public
Entit |Atten | 18th public Companies #
led ded Septem- compa- Chair [ Mem
to ber 2021 | nies$ man | ber
Attend

Mr. Srikrishna Promoter, 7 7 Yes Nil Nil Nil

Naik Executive

Ms. Meena Non 7 7 Yes Nil Nil Nil

Bhushan Executive

Kerur (Promoter)

Mr. Suryana Independent, | 7 7 No Nil Nil Nil

rayana Non-

Murthy Krovi Executive

Mr. Magsood Independent, | 7 7 No Nil Nil Nil

Ahmed Non-

Executive

$ Other Directorships do not include Directorships of Private Limited Companies, Section 8 companies
and of companies incorporated outside India.

# Chairmanships / Memberships of Board committees shall include only Audit Committee and
Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee.

The Meeting of Independent Directors was held on 31 January 2022 to:

a.  evaluating the performance of the Chairperson of the company, taking intoaccount the views of
executive directors and non-executive directors;
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b.  reviewing the performance of non-independent directors and the Board asa whole

c.  assessing the quality, quantity and timeliness of flow of informationbetween the company
management and the Board so as to ensure that theBoard is performing the duties effectively
and reasonably.

iii. COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD:

Currently the Board has three Committees:
a. Audit Committee;
b. Nomination and Remuneration Committee&
c. Stakeholder’sRelationship Committee.

a. COMPOSITION OF AUDIT COMMITTEE:

Currently, the Audit Committee consists of the following members:

a. Mr.Magsood Ahmed - Chairperson
b. Mr.Suryanarayana Murthy Krovi - Member
c. Mrs. MeenaKerur - Member

The above composition of the Audit Committee consists of independent Directors viz., Mr.
MagsoodAhmed and Mr. Suryanarayana Murthy Kroviwho form the majority.

The Audit Committee met Five (5) times during the financial year, i.e 22" June 2021; 29™ June 2021;
11" August 2021; 8"November 2021; 315 January 2022.

The gap between two meetings did not exceed 120 days and the necessary quorum was present for
all the meetings.

The composition of the Audit committee and the details of meetings attended by its members are
given below:

Name Category Number of meetings during the
financial year 2021-22
Entitled to Attend Attended

Mrs. Meena Bhushan Non-Executive 5 5

Kerur

Mr. Suryana Independent, 5 5

rayana Non-Executive -

Murthy Krovi

Mr. Magsood Ahmed Independent, 5 5
Non- Executive

The primary objective of the Audit Committee is to monitor and provide effective supervision of the
financial reporting process, to ensure accurate and timely disclosures with the highest level of
transparency, integrity and quality.
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All the Audit Committee members are financially literate and bring in expertise in the fields of
finance, economics and management. Also, the Chief Financial Officer attends the Committee meetings
asinvitee.

b. COMPOSITION OF NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE:

Currently, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee consists of the following members:

a. Mr. Magsood Ahmed - Chairperson
b. Mr. Suryanarayana Murthy Krovi - Member
C. Mrs. Meena Kerur - Member

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee met One (1) time during the financial year, i.e., 23"
August 2021.

The composition of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee and the details of meetings attended
by its members are given below:

Name Category Number of meetings during the
financial year 2020-21
Entitled to Attend Attended

Mrs. Meena Bhushan Non-Executive 1 1

Kerur

Mr. Suryana Independent, 1 1

rayana Non-Executive -

Murthy Krovi

Mr. Magsood Ahmed Independent, 1 1
Non- Executive

c. COMPOSITION OF STAKEHOLDERS RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE:

Currently, the Stakeholders Relationship Committee consists of the following members:

a. Mrs. MeenaKerur - Chairperson
b. Mr. Srikrishna Naik - Member
c. Mr. Suryanarayana Murthy Krovi - Member

iv. VIGIL MECHANISM:

The Company has implemented a vigil mechanism policy to deal with instance of fraud and
mismanagement, if any. It provides for the directors and employees to report genuine concerns and
provides adequate safeguards against victimization of persons who use such mechanism. The Policy
on vigil mechanism may be accessed on the Company’s website at the link: http://

www.goldencarpets.com/whistle-blower-policy.html. There were no complaints received during
the year 2021-22.
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COMPLIANCEWITH SECRETARIAL STANDARDS:

The Company has devised proper systems to ensurecompliance with the provisions of all
applicableSecretarial Standards issued by the Institute ofCompany Secretaries of India and that
such systems areadequate and operating effectively.

LISTING FEES:

The Company has timely paid listing fees for the financial year to BSE Limited where its shares are
listed.

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES AND RELATED DISCLOSURES:

The information relating to remuneration of Directors and details of the ratio of the remuneration of
each Director to the median employee’s remuneration and other details as required pursuant to
section 197(12) of the Act read along with Rule 5(1) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration
of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 is annexed.(Annexure- 1V).

Pursuant to Rule5(2) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration Managerial Personnel)
Rule, 2014, there are no employees who are in receipt of remuneration of Rs. 1,02,00,000/- or more
per annum or Rs. 8,50,000/- or more per month or where employed for a part of the year.

DETAILS OF DEPOSITS:

Your Company has not accepted any deposits as per Section 73 of the Companies Act 2013 from the
public and as such, no amount on account of principal or intereston deposits from public was
outstanding as on the date ofthe Balance Sheet.

THE DETAILS OF SIGNIFICANT MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR
COURTS OR TRIBUNALS IMPACTING THE GOING CONCERNSTATUS AND COMPANY’S
OPERATIONS INFUTURE:

During the financial year, there were no significant and material orders that were passed by the
regulators or courts or tribunals impacting the going concern status and the Company operations in
future.

DECLARATIONWITH THE COMPLIANCE WITH THE CODE OF CONDUCT BY MEMBERS
OF THE BOARD AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL:

The Company has complied with the requirements about code of conduct for Board members and Sr.
Management Personnel.

The said code of conduct is available on the website of the Company.
APPRECIATION:

The Board of Directors are pleased to place on record their appreciation of the co-operation and
support extended by the Financial Institutions, Banks and various State and Central Government
Agencies.
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The Board would also like to thank the Company’s shareholders, customers, suppliers for the support
and the confidence which they have reposed in the management. Finally, the Board appreciate and
value the contributions made by the employees at all levels for their hard work, solidarity, co-
operation and support.

By order of the Board of Directors
For Golden Carpets Ltd
Place: Hyderabad
Date: 24.08.2022 Sd/-
SRIKRISHNA NAIK
Managing Director
DIN: 01730236
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ANNEXURE-I

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION ANALYSIS REPORT

(Pursuant to Regulation 34 read with Schedule V of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosures
Requirements) Regulations, 2015)

Industry Structure and Development:

India is today a clear leader in the international handmade carpet market. India’s heritage of
handmade carpet has been recognized worldwide with a commending share in global exports, for
its subtle elegance, eco-friendliness and exquisite vibrant color craftsmanship with a human touch.

Exquisite Indian carpets reflect timeless amalgamation of nature, culture and art while being part of
luxurious lifestyles in modern times. The carpet industry in India, goes as far back as the 16th
century, when Mughals established the art of carpet weaving in the town of Akbarabad, now Agra.
These magnificent masterpieces created by over 3 million Indian carpet weavers and craftsmen
continue to grab eyeballs by the consumers around the globe. This industry contributes significantly
in the employment and income segment as well as foreign exchange earnings. Since the inception,
this sector has industry has been rural based, thus, it also leads to notable regional growth.

The carpet industry is flourishing in the states of Rajasthan, Kashmir, Punjab, Uttar Pradesh,
Telangana, Andhra Pradesh, Himachal Pradesh and the Seven Sisters of North-East India.

India contributes approximately 40 per cent of the worldwide export of handmade carpets. Exports
of handmade carpets from India stood at approximately Rs. 16,640.26 crores in the financial year
2021-22. India is exporting to more than 70 countries in the world, mainly to the USA, Germany,
Canada, U.K., Australia, South Africa, France, Italy, Brazil, etc,USA leading with 57% share of the
total exports.

The Indian carpet industry is very vibrant and has considerable potential for growth. However,
lesser innovation techniques, outdated technology, labor law issues and lack of infrastructural
facilities are major barriers that make this industry less competent as compared to other carpet
supplying countries.Also due to continuous declaration of lockdown by the Central Government
and State Government, the Company has witnessed loss of production, order cancellations &
substantial loss ofrevenue. All these, along with the burden of high fixed cost, will severely impact
performance of the Company.

Opportunities and Threats:
® Opportunities

Home furnishing market is moving towards Carpet industry, which results in evolution of new
carpet designs. It is used as a marketing tool and gives opportunity to provide stocking and
warehousing services to various players in the market, rise in the number of construction activities
in the developing economies and increased consumer expenditure on interiors of houses, hotels and
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offices and luxury vehicles as well as cars is expected to contribute significantly to the growth in the
demand for carpets. Development of innovative designed light weight carpets and floorings is
expected to open opportunities for the growth of the market in the near future.

® Threats

Subdued domestic demand and declining export demand due to lockdowns in global markets on
account of COVID-19 come as a double blow for Industry. With increase in raw material prices, the
Indian manufacturers are not able to compete with other carpet producing countries and this has
had an impact on the exports of the carpets from India. Moreover, alternative flooring materials such
as ceramics, marble, granite and other innovative and decorative flooring materials are cheap
substitutes of carpets as they are easy on maintenance and is therefore a major threat for the carpet
industry.

Segment Wise Performance:

The Company operates in single segments i.e. carpets business. Hence, The Business
Segmentsreporting in accordance with Accounting Standard 17 ‘Segment Reporting’ is not applicable.

Outlook:

Our objectives remain the same, although the aftermath of Covid-19 have an impact. The world is not
be the same after Covid-19. Forour industry it is very important to recover the trust of the consumer
on the other hand income loss among the consumers may translate into a fall in consumption of non-
essential goods like carpets, in turn affecting the prospects for businesses and economies. Given the
capacity and the current available technology, the Company will continue to perform on the same
lines and will continue to strive to improve and boost the performance.

Risk and Concerns:

The Company derives revenue from the domestic market. With the increase in availability of multiple
flooring options available and the exorbitant prices and cost of maintaining carpets, there is a risk of
change in customer preference which may adversely affect the demand of the products andindirectly
the revenue and growth of the Company.

Non-availability of raw materials, lack of manpower, technologies up-gradation in the peer group
and non-availability of timely working capital needs exacerbatesthe risks hovering over the Company.

Company is taking appropriate steps in order to tackle the aforementioned risks by adopting in time
suitable strategies.

Internal Control Systems and their Adequacy:

The Company has a proper and adequate system of internal controls commensurate with its size
Company complieswith all applicable statutes, policies, procedures, listing requirements and
management guidelines. Itadheres to applicable accounting standards and polices.
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Material Development in Human Resources/Industrial Relations:

The Company recognizes and acknowledges the importance and contribution made by its employees.
The Company has amicable relations with its employees and staff.

Significant changes in the Key financial ratios and other parameters:

There are no significant changes in the Key financial ratios and other parameters of the Company as
compared to the previous year.

Cautionary Statement:

Statements in the Management and Discussion Analysis which seek to describe the
Company’sobjective, projections, estimates, expectations or predictions may be considered to be
forward lookingstatements within the meaning of the applicable securities laws and regulations.The
Company assumes no responsibility to publiclyamend, modify or revise any forward looking.
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ANNEXURE- I
FORM NO. MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FORTHE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31t MARCH, 2022
[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and ruleno.9 of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]
To,
The Members
Golden Carpets Ltd
8-2-596/5/B/1, Road No.10
Banjara Hills, Hyderabad —-500034
Telangana, India.

We have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and
the adherence to good corporate practices by Golden Carpets Ltd (hereinafter called the “Company”).
Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the
corporate conduct/statutory compliances and expressing our opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of the Golden Carpets Ltd books, papers, minute books, forms and returns
filed and other records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the
Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of Secretarial Audit,
we hereby report that in our opinion, the Company has, during the audit period covering the financial
year ended on 31st March 2022 complied with the statutory provisions, listing Regulations and also
that the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in
the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records
maintained by the Company for the financial year ended on 31 March 2022 according to the
provisions of:

i.  The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made there under;
ii.  The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA) and the rules made there under;
iii. The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed there under;

iv. Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made there under to
the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial
Borrowings;

v.  The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board
of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’):

a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and
Takeovers) Regulations, 2011;

b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations,
1992;
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c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2009 -Not applicable to the Company during the Audit Period.

d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme and Employee
Stock Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999 and The Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Share Based Employee Benefits) Regulations, 2014 notified on 28 October 2014-Not
applicable to the Company during the Audit Period.

€) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities)
Regulations, 2008- Not applicable to the Company during the Audit Period.

f)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer
Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client;

0) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009
- Not applicable to the Company during the Audit Period; and

h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1998 -
Not applicable to the Company during the Audit Period.

vi. There are no other laws specifically applicable to the Company in view of the management.
We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:

i.  Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India with respect to
Board and General Meetings.

ii.  The Listing Regulations - SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2015.

During the period under review, the Company has complied with the provisions of the Acts, Rules,
Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above subject to the following observations:

® The Company has not appointed Internal Auditor as required under the provisions of Section 138
of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 13 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

We further report that the Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper
balance of Executlve Directors, Non Executive Directors and Independent Dlrectors 4=heehanges—m

Adequate notice was given to all Directors at least seven days in advance to schedule the Board
Meetings. Agenda and detailed notes on agenda were sent in advance, and a system exists for
seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting
and for meaningful participation at the meeting.

All decisions at Board Meetings and Committee Meetings are carried out unanimously as recorded
in the minutes of the meetings of the Board of Directors or Committee of the Board, as the case may be.
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We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company to commensurate
with the size and operations of the Company to monitor and to ensure compliance with applicable
laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

For Akhil Mittal & Associates

Practicing Company Secretaries

Sd/-
Place: Hyderabad Akhil Mittal
Date: 24.08.2022 Company Secretary
ACS No- 38717
CP No. 21095

UDIN: A038717D000841739
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This report is to be read with our letter of even date, which is annexed as
“Annexure — A” and forms an integral part of this report.
“Annexure—A”

To,

The Members

Golden Carpets Ltd

8-2-596/5/B/1, Road No.10, Banjara Hills
Hyderabad-500034

Telangana, India

Our Secretarial Audit Report for the financial year ended March 31, 2022 of even date is to be read
along with this letter.

1. Maintenance of secretarial records is the responsibility of the management of the company.
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit.

2. We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable
assurance about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records.

3. The verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial
records. We believe that the processes and practices that, we have followed has provided a
reasonable basis for our opinion.

4.  We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and books of
accounts of the company.

5. Where ever required, we have obtained the management representation about the compliance
of laws, rules, regulations, guidelines and happening of events, etc.

6. The compliance of the provisions of corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations,
standards is the responsibility of management. Our examination was limited to the verification
of procedures on test basis.

7. The Secretarial Audit Report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the company
nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the

company.

For Akhil Mittal & Associates
Practicing Company Secretaries

Sd/-
Place: Hyderabad Akhil Mittal
Date: 24.08.2022 Company Secretary
ACS No- 38717
CP No. 21095

UDIN: A038717D000841739
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ANNEXURE - 111

Particulars of Energy Conservation, Technology Absorption and Foreign Exchange Earnings

and Outgo

[Pursuant to Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014]

A. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY
i) | The steps taken or impact on conservation of energy The necessary steps were
undertaken by a Company
to improve upon the energy
conservation measures.
ii) | The steps taken by the Company for utilizing -
alternate sources of energy
iii)| The capital investment on energy conservation Nil
equipment’s
B. TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION
i) | The efforts made towards technology absorption NA
il) | The benefits derived like product improvement, cost
reduction, product development or import substitution NA
iii)| In case of imported technology (imported during the NA
last three years reckoned from the beginning of the
financial year)
a. The details of technology imported NA
b. The year of import NA
c. Whether the technology been fully absorbed NA
d. If not fully absorbed, areas where absorption has not
taken place and the reasons thereof and NA
iv) | The expenditure incurred on Research and Development NA
C. FOREIGNEXCHANGEEARNINGS AND OUTGO

(Rs. in Lakhs)

Foreign Exchange Earnings & Outgo:
2021-22 2020-21
Earnings Nil Nil
Outgo Nil Nil
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ANNEXURE - IV
Details of Ratio of Remuneration of Directors

[Pursuant to Section 197(12), read with Rule 5 of Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of
Managerial Personnel), Rules, 2014]

1. Theratio of the remuneration of each director to the median remuneration of the employees
of the Company for the financial year:

S.No. Name of the Director Ratio
1. Srikrishna Naik 11.37:1

2. The percentage increase in remuneration of each director, Chief Financial Officer, Chief
Executive Officer, Company Secretary or Manager, if any, in the financial year:

During the financial year thereis no increment in the remunerationof director, Chief Financial
Officer, Chief Executive Officer, Company Secretary or Manager.

3. The percentage increase in the median remuneration of employees in the financial year:
During the year there is no increment in the remuneration of employees of the Company.

4.  The number of permanent employees on the rolls of the Company:
There are 8 (Eight) employees on the rolls of the Company.

5. Average percentile increases already made in the salaries of employees other than the
managerial personnel in the last financial year and its comparison with the percentile
increase in the managerial remuneration and justification thereof and point out if there are
any exceptional circumstances for increase in the managerial remuneration:

During the financial year there were no such events.

6. Affirmation that the remuneration is as per the remuneration policy of the Company.

Company hereby affirms that remuneration paid is as per the remuneration policy of the
Company.

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 24.08.2022
By order of the Board
For Golden Carpets Ltd
Sd/-
Srikrishna Naik
Managing Director
DIN: 01730236
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE MEMBER OF GOLDEN CARPETS LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of GOLDEN CARPETS LIMITED
(the “Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2022, the Statement of Profit
and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Changes in Equity and the
Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended on that date and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory in formation (herein after referred to as the “stand alone financial
statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
theaforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act,
2013(the “Act™) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the
IndianAccounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,2015, as amended, (“IndAS”) and other accounting principles
generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2022 and its profit,
total comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

BasisforOpinion

We conducted our audit of the standalone financial statements in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing(*“SA”s) specified under section 143( 10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those
Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone
Financial Statements section of ourreport. We are independent of the Company in accordance with
the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI”) together with
theethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the standalone financial statements under
the provisions of the Act and the Rules made there under, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAI’s Code of Ethics. We believe
that the audit evidence obtained by us is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the stand alone financial statements.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in
our audit of the standalone financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed
in the context of our audit of the standalone financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. We have determined
the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our report.
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S.No Key Audit Matter Auditor’s Response

1 Assessment of Deferred TaxAssessment | Principal Audit Procedures performed:
of Deferred tax assets recognized by the
Company on carry forward of losses.
Deferred tax assets on unabsorbed
depreciation or carry forward of losses are
to be recognized only when there is a virtual
certainty supported by convincing
evidence that sufficient future taxable
income will be available against which
such deferred tax assets can be realized.
Determination of virtual certainty is a
matter of judgment based on convincing | = Tested the period over which the deferred
evidence. Considering the involvement of tax assets on such unabsorbed losses would
management’s estimation and judgmentin be recovered against future taxable income.
determining virtual certainty of sufficient
future taxable income being available this
matter has been determined as a key audit
matter. Refer Note6 of Notes to Accountsof
the Standalone Financial Statements.

e Considered the taxable profits of the
Company and taxes paid in the past,
obtained details of carry forward losses
under income tax and details of estimates of
taxable incomes for future periods without
considering further capital infusion, of
restructuring and without considering
expected recoveries from assets where
resolution proceedings are underway.

e Tested the management’s under lying
assumptions and judgments in estimating
the future taxable incomes against which
such unabsorbed losses would be recovered.

 We have reviewed past income tax
assessment orders, unresolved tax issues
and their current status under litigation,
based on our understanding on the likely
outcome of the issues on the dispute and the

amount of allowable carry forward losses.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other
informationcomprises the information included in the Management Discussion and Analysis,
Board’s Reportincluding Annexures to Board’s Report, Business Responsibility Report, Corporate
Governance andShareholder’s Information, but does not include stand alone financial statements
and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we do
not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the standalone financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information; we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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Management’sResponsibilitiesfortheStandaloneFinancial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act
with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view
of the financial position, financial performance, including other comprehensive income, changes in
equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the Ind AS and other accounting principles
generallyaccepted in India. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and
for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation andpresentation of the standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view
and are free frommaterial misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the standalone financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
goingconcern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to
liquidatetheCompany orto cease operations, orhasnorealisticalternative butto doso.

The Boardof Directors is also responsible for over seeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’sResponsibilitiesfortheAuditoftheStandaloneFinancial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’sreport that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is
not aguarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material
if, individuallyor in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these stand alone financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of notdetecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error,as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

® Obtain an understanding of internal financial control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143 (3)(i) of the Act,
we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate
internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the management.
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® Conclude onthe appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether amaterialuncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubton the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in
our auditor’sreport to the related disclosures in the standalone financial statements or, if such
disclosures areinadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up tothe date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Company toceasetocontinue asa going concern.

® Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial
statements,including the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements represent
the underlyingtransactionsand events in amannerthatachievesfairpresentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone financial statements that, individually
or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user
of the stand alone financial statements maybe influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and
qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our
work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the standalone financial
statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
plannedscope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies ininternal controlthatweidentify during ouraudit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, relatedsafeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters
thatwere of most significance in the audit of the standalone financial statements of the current
period andare therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report
unless law orregulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. Asrequired by Section143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report that:

d) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b) Inour opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company
so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

C) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive Income,
Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows dealt with by this Report
are in agreement with the books of account.
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d) In our opinion, the aforesaid stand alone financial statements comply with the IndAS
specified under Section133 of the Act.

€) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31,
2022 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on
March31, 2022 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of
the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report
in”Annexure A”. Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and
operating effectiveness of the Company’s internal financial controls over financial reporting.

g With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended:

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given
to us, the remuneration paid by the Company to its directors during the year is in accordance
with the provisions of section 197 of the Act.

h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, in our opinion
and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

I.  The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position
in its stand alone financial statements.

ii. The Company has made provision, as required under the applicable law or accounting
standards, for material foreseeable losses, if any, on long-term contracts including
derivative contracts.

iii. There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the
Investor Education and Protection Fundby the Company.

IV. (a) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no
funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been
advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium
orany other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person
orentity, including foreign entity (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether,
directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any
manner what so ever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or
provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(b) The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no
funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been
received by the Company from any person or entity, including foreign entity
(“Funding Parties™), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
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otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest
in other persons or entities identified in any manner what so ever by or on behalf
of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security
or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(8 Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused
us to believe that here presentations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rulel1(e), as
provided under and(b) above, contain any material misstatement.

V. The Company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year in contravention to
the provisions of section 123 of the Companies Act, 2013.

2. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (the “Order”) issued by the
Central Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in “Annexure B” a statement
on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 ofthe Order.

For M/S. TR M & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No.: 009224S

Rammurthy Telukuntla
Partner

M No0.024789

UDIN: 22024789AIBAZN7219

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 16.05.2022
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ANNEXURE”A”TOTHEINDEPENDENTAUDITOR’SREPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 1(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section
of our report to the Members of Golden Carpets Limited of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of sub-section
3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act,2013(the” Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of GOLDEN CARPETS
LIMITED(the”Company”) as of March 31, 2022 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone
IndAS financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Management of the Company is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of India (the “ICAI”). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of
adequateinternal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and
efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its
assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under
the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls over financial
reporting of the Company based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance
Note”) issuedby the ICAI and the Standards on Auditing prescribed under Section 143(10) of the
Companies Act,2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those
Standards and theGuidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit toobtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls
over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in
all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of
internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal
financialcontrols over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and
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testing andevaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed
risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to
providereasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. Acompany’s internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies
and procedures that

(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect
thetransactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;

(2) provide reasonable assurance thattransactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation
of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that
receipts and expendituresofthecompanyarebeingmade only in accordance with authorizations
of management and directors of the company; and

(3) Provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized
acquisition, use or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the
financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including
thepossibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the
internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the
internal financial control over financial reporting may become in adequate because of changes in
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial
reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating
effectively as at March 31, 2022, based on the criteria for internal financial control over financial
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reporting established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
issued by the ICAL.

For M/S. TR M & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No.: 009224S

Rammurthy Telukuntla
Partner

M No0.024789

UDIN: 22024789AJBAZN7219

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 16.05.2022
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ANNEXURE B TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

Report as required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013
(Refer to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our
report of even date) With reference to the Annexure A referred to in the Independent Auditors’ Report
to the members of the Company on the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022, we
report the following:

() (@) (A) The Company has proper records related to full particulars including quantitative
details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment.

(B) The Company has proper records related to full particulars with respect to intangible
assets held by the company.

(b) The Company has a programme of verification to cover all the items of fixed assets in a
phased manner which in our opinion is reasonable having regard to the side of the
company and the nature of its assets. Pursuant to the programme certain fixed assets
were physical verified by the management during the year, According to the information
and explanations given to us no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

(©) Thecompany has noimmovable properties, which are not held in the name of the company.

(d) The company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment during the year.
Therefore, the provisions of Clause (i)(d) of paragraph 3 of the order are not applicable to
the company.

(€) No proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the company for holding any
benami propertyunder the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and
rules made thereunder. Therefore, theprovisions of Clause (i)(e) of paragraph 3 of the
order are not applicable to the company.

(i)  (a) Inour opinion, physical verification of inventory has been conducted at reasonable intervals
by themanagement and the coverage and procedure of such verification by the
management is appropriate. No materialdiscrepancies were noticed on such verification.

(b) During any point of time of the year, the company has not been sanctioned any working
capital limits, from banks o rfinancial institutions on the basis of security of current
assets. Therefore, the provisions of Clause (ii) (b) of paragraph 3 of the order are not
applicable to the company.

(i) During the year, the company has not made any investments in, provided any guarantee or
security or granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured, to
companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties. Therefore, the provisions
of clause 3(iii) of the said Order are not applicable to the company.

(iv) The company has not made any loans, investments, guarantees and security on which
provisions of section185 and 186 of the Companies Act 2013 are applicable. Therefore, the
provisions of clause 3(iv) of the said Order are not applicable to the company.
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V)

(Vi)

(vii)

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
has not accepted any deposits from public. Therefore, the provisions of Clause (v) of paragraph3
of the order are not applicable to the Company.

As explained to us, the Central Government of India has not specified the maintenance of cost
records under sub-section (1) of Section 148 of the Act for any of the products of the Company.
Therefore, the provisions of Clause (vi) of paragraph 3 of the order are not applicable to the
Company.

(a) The Company is generally regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including
Provident Fund, Employees State Insurance, Income tax, Sales Tax, Wealth tax, Service
tax, Duty of Customs, duty of Excise, Value Added Tax, GST, Cess and other statutory
dues with the appropriate authorities to the extent applicable toit. There are no undisputed
amounts payable in respect of income tax, wealth tax, service tax, sales tax, valueadded
tax, duty of customs, duty of excise or cess which have remained outstanding as at
March 31, 2022 for aperiod of more than 6 months from the date they became payable.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not having
the tax dues under dispute.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there is no any
transactions not recorded in the books of account have been surrendered or disclosed as
income during the year in the taxassessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961).

(@ In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has notdefaulted in repayment of any loan or other borrowings or any interest
due thereon to any lender.

(b) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
company has not been adeclared willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or
other lender.

(© In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
loans were applied for thepurpose for which the loans were obtained.

(d) Inour opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there are
no funds raised onshort term basis which have been utilized for long term purposes.

(&) Inouropinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company
has not taken anyfunds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations
of its subsidiaries, associates or jointventures.

(f)  Inouropinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company
has not raisedloans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its subsidiaries,
joint ventures or associate companies.
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(X) (a) The Company has not raised money by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debtinstruments). Therefore, the provisions of Clause (x)(a) of paragraph 3 of the
order are not applicable to theCompany.

(b) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company
has not madepreferential allotment or private placement of shares during the year under
section 42 andsection 62 of the Companies Act, 2013.

(Xi) (a) We have not noticed any case of fraud by the company or any fraud on the Company by its
officers oremployees during the year. The management has also not reported any case of
fraud during the year.

(b) During the year no report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has
been filed by theauditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit
and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with theCentral Government.

(c) As auditor, we did not receive any whistle- blower complaint during the year.

(Xii)  The company is nota Nidhi Company. Therefore, the provisions of Clause (xii) of paragraph
3 of the orderare not applicable to the Company.

(xiil)  As per the information and explanations received to us all transactions with the related
parties are incompliance with sections 177 and 188 of Companies Act where applicable,
and the details have been disclosed in the financial statements, etc., as required by the
applicable accounting standards. Identification of relatedparties were made and provided
by the management of the company.

(Xiv)  The company is not covered by section 138 of the Companies Act, 2013, related to
appointment of internalauditor of the company. Therefore, the company is not required to
appointed any internal auditor. Therefore, theprovisions of Clause (xiv) of paragraph 3 of
the order are not applicable to the Company.

(Xv)  The Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons
connected with himfor the year under review. Therefore, the provisions of Clause (xv) of
paragraph 3 of the order are not applicableto the Company.

(xvi)(a) The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of
India Act,1934.

(b) The company has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities
during the year.

(€) The company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made
by the Reserve Bank of India.

(d) As per the information and explanations received, the group does not have any CIC as part
ofthe group.
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(xvii)

(xvii)

(xix)

(>x)

The Company has not incurred cash losses during the financial year covered by our audit
and theimmediately preceding financial yearThere has been no resignation of the previous
statutory auditors during the year.

On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial
assets and paymentof financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial
statements, the auditor’s knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans, we
are of the opinion that no material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that
company is capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet asand
when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date.

There is no liability of the company under the provisions of section 135 of the Companies
Act, relating toCorporate Social Responsibility. Therefore, the provisions of Clause (xx) of
paragraph 3 of the order are notapplicable to the Company.

The company has not made investments in subsidiary company. Therefore, the company
does not require to prepare consolidated financial statement. Therefore, the provisions of
Clause (xxi) of paragraph 3 of the order are not applicable to the Company.

For M/S. TR M & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No.: 009224S

Rammurthy Telukuntla
Partner

M No0.024789

UDIN: 22024789AIBAZN7219

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 16.05.2022
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BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31 March, 2022

(AmountinRs.)

Particul Not As at As at
articutars ofes 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
ASSETS
Non-Current Assets
(a) Property, Plant & Equipment
(i) Tangible assets 4 18,761,614 19,329,612
(ii) Intangible assets - -
(iii) Capital work-in-progress - -
(iv) Intangible assets under development
(b) Other non-current assets 5 469,910 483,410
(c)Deferred Tax Asset (Net) 6 3,677,436 3,482,902
22,908,959 23,295,924
Current Assets
(a) Inventories 7 28,292,857 28,619,788
(b) Financial Assets - -
(i) Trade Receivables 8 403,342 2,163,247
(i) Cash & Cash Equivalents 9 2,523,748 2,015,896
(iii) Bank Balances other than (ii) above - -
(iv) Others - -
(c) Other Current Assets 10 483,088 447,985
31,703,034 33,246,916
TOTAL ASSETS 54,611,994 56,542,840
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
(a) Equity Share Capital 11 84,411,590 84,411,590
(b) Other Equity 12 (82,483,940) (80,019,222)
1,927,650 4,392,368
Liabilities
Non Current Liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings 13 46,592,322 46,592,322
(ii) Other Financial Liabilities - -
(b) Provisions 14 - -
(c)Deferred Tax Liability (Net) - -
(d)Other Non Current Liabilities - -
46,592,322 46,592,322
Current Liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings - -
(ii) Trade payables 15 218,696 287,800
(iii) Other Financial liabilities - -
(b) Other Current Liabilities 16 5,873,326 5,270,350
(c) Provisions - -
(d)Current tax liabilities (Net) - -
6,092,022 5,558,150
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 54,611,994 56,542,840

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.

As per Report of even date attached

For M/s. TRM & Associates
Chartered Accountants
FRN No0.009224S

Sd/-
Rammurthy Telukuntla
Partner
M.No0.024789
UDIN:22024789AJBAZN7219
Place : Hyderabad
Date : 16.05.2022

Sd/-

Srikrishna Naik
Managing Director

For and on Behalf of Board of Directors

Sd/-
Meena Kerur
Director
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STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 315t March 2022

(AmountinRs.)

Particulars Notes |For the year Ended | For the year Ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
I Revenue
Revenue from Operations 17 5,915,842 9,135,405
Other Income 18 733,963 664,690
Total Revenue 6,649,805 9,800,095
Il Expenses
Cost of materials consumed 19 1,940,653 3,410,431
Purchase of Stock In trade
Changes in Inventories of Finished Goods and WIP 20 510,576 28,769
Employee Benefit Expenses 21 2,574,698 2,519,068
Finance Cost 22 6,186 5,478
Depreciation & Amortization Expenses 23 1,115,748 1,063,574
Other Expenses 24 3,161,197 2,551,827
Total Expenses 9,309,058 9,579,147
Profit before exceptional and extraordinary
items and tax (2,659,253) 220,948
Exceptional items
a) Expenses Incidental to Land Acquisition
transf to CWIP -
Profit before tax (2,659,253) 220,948
Tax Expense:
(i) Current Tax
(ii)  Deffered Tax (194,534) 69,341
Profit/ (Loss) for the Period (2,464,719) 151,607
Other Comprehensive Income
A: (i) Items that will not be reclassified to
profit or loss in subsequent periods - -
(ii) Income tax relating to items that will
not be reclassified to profit or loss - -
B: (i) Items that will be reclassified to Profit & Loss - -
(ii) Income tax relating to items that will be
reclassified to Profit & Loss - -
Other Comprehensive Income for the Year -
Total Comprehensive Income for the Year (2,464,719) 151,607
Earnings per Equity Share
Basic and Diluted Earnings Per Equity Share of
Rs.10 eachNumber of Equity Shares
1,00,00,000 (1,00,00,000)23 (0.38) 0.02

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.

As per Report of even date attached

For M/s. TRM & Associates
Chartered Accountants
FRN No0.009224S

Sd/- Sd/-
Rammurthy Telukuntla Srikrishna Naik
Partner Managing Director
M.No0.024789

UDIN:22024789AJBAZN7219
Place : Hyderabad
Date : 16.05.2022

For and on Behalf of Board of Directors

Sd/-
Meena Kerur
Director
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31-03-2022

(Pursuant to Clause 32 of the Listing Agreement) (AmountinRs)

Particulars For the Year enededFor the Year ended
315t March 2022 [ 31tMarch 2021

A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

Profit/(Loss) before tax (2,659,253) 220,948
Adjustments to reconcile net profit to net cash
provided by operating activities Depreciation 1,115,748 1,063,574

Changes in assets and liabilities

(Increase)/Decrease in Current Assets

(i) Inventories 326,931 1,772,356
(i) Trade receivables 1,759,905 (1,705,683)
(iii) Other financial assets -

(iv) Other current assets (35,103) 216,979

Increase/(Decrease) in Current Liabilities

(v) Trade payables (69,104) (140,703)
(vi) (Increase)/Decrease in other financial liabilities - -
(vii) Increase/(Decrease) in other current Liabilities 602,976 1,133,902
(viii) Increase/(Decrease) in other Non current Liabilities - (52,213)

2,585,606 1,224,638
Cash Generated from Operations 1,042,100 2,509,160
Income taxes refund 7/ (paid) - -
Net Cash from Operating Activities ( A) 1,042,100 2,509,160

B CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Investment in Fixed assets (547,752) (2,250,540)

Investment in CWIP - .

Investment in other non-current assets (Capital advances) 13,502 -

Net Cash from Investing Activities ( B ) (534,251) (2,250,540)
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(AmountinRs.)

Particulars For the Year eneded For the Year ended
31t March 2022 31tMarch 2021

C CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Long term Loans raised - -
Equity capital raised - -

Net Cash from Financing Activities ( C) - -
Net Increase/(Decrease) in Cash &

Cash Equivalents (A)+(B)+(C) 507,850 258,620

Cash and Cash Equivalents As At Beginning of the Year 2,015,898 1,757,276

Cash and Cash Equivalents As At End of the Year 2,523,748 2,015,896
Notes

i) The above Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under the ‘Indirect Method’ in accordance
with Ind AS - 7 Statement of Cash Flows

ii)  Figures in brackets are outflows / deductions.

iii) Cash and cash equivalents represent bank balances.

As per Report of even date attached

For M/s. TRM & Associates For and on Behalf of Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants
FRN No0.009224S

Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-
Rammurthy Telukuntla Srikrishna Naik Meena Kerur
Partner Managing Director Director
M.No0.024789

UDIN:22024789AJBAZN7219

Place : Hyderabad
Date : 16.05.2022

50 28" Annual Report 2021-2022



Golden Carpets Limited A

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE PERIOD ENDED MARCH 31, 2022
(A)EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL
For the period ended March 31, 2022

Particul For the year Ended For the year Ended
articulars March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
No. of Amount | Number [ Amount
Equity shares of Rs. 10 each issued, Shares inRs. Shares inRs.
subscribed and fully paid
Balance at the beginning of the reporting period 6,490,159 | 64,901,590 | 6,490,159(64,901,590
Changes in equity share capital during the year - - - -
Add: Forfeited Shares 19,510,000 19,510,000
Balance at the end of the reporting period 6,490,159 | 84,411,590 | 6,490,159 | 84,411,590
(B) OTHER EQUITY
For the period ended March 31, 2022
Reserves and Surplus (Amountin Rs.)
For the year ended | For the year ended

Particulars

31st March 2022 31st March 2021

Retained Earnings

Balance at the beginning of the reporting period (102,426,617) (102,526,016)

Securities Premium 22,407,396 22,407,396
Profit / (Loss) for the year (Note - 14) (2,464,719) 99,399
Other Comprehensive Income for the Year - -
Balance at the end of the reporting period (82,483,940) (80,019,221)

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
As per Report of even date attached

For M/s. TRM & Associates For and on Behalf of Board of Directors

Chartered Accountants
FRN No0.009224S

Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-
Rammurthy Telukuntla Srikrishna Naik Meena Kerur
Partner Managing Director Director
M.No0.024789

UDIN:22024789AIBAZN7219
Place : Hyderabad
Date : 16.05.2022
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Note 4: Property, Plantand Equipment

March 31, 2022

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2022 | March 31, 2021
Property, Plant and Equipment (Note: 4A) 18,761,614 19,329,612
Intangible assets (Note: 4A) - -
Note 5: Other Non-current assets
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2022 | March 31, 2021
Electricity Deposit 148,410 148,410
Deposit With FAPCCI 5,000 5,000
Sales tax Deposit 3,000 3,000
Rent Deposit 312,000 312,000
Telephone Deposit 1,500 15,000
As at the end of the year 469,910 483,410
Note 6- Deferred Tax
Particulars Year ended Year ended

March 31, 2021

a. DEPRECIATION DIFFERENCE

WDV as per Income Tax Act

WDV as per Companies Act

Depreciation Difference

Deferred Tax Liability on above diff (a)

b. EFFERED TAX ON ACCOUNT OF PROFIT
/ (LOSSES):

Accumulated Lossess -31.03.2020

Accumulated Profit/(Lossess) and unabsorbed

depreciation - Current year (As Per Computation

Sheet attached)

Deferred Tax Liability on above diff (b)

Deferred tax ( Asset) on Losses

Opening Value of deferred Tax Liability /7 ( Asset)

P&Lalc
Balancesheet

Net Value of defered tax Liability / (Asset) as on 31.03.22:

Deferred Tax Expense / (savings) for the current year :

6,496,809 6,940,583
18,761,614 19,329,612
12,264,805 12,389,029

3,789,825 3,828,210

(23,660,556) (23,887,365)
(505,336) 226,309
(24,165,892) (23,660,556)
(7,467,261) (7,311,112)
(3,677,436) (3,482,902)
(3,482,902) (3,552,243)

(194,534) 69,341

(194,534) 69,341
(3,677,436) (3,482,902)
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Note 7: Inventories

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Raw materials 26,452,858 26,269,213
Finished goods 1,839,999 2,350,575
As at the end of the year 28,292,857 28,619,788
Note 8: Trade Receivables
Particulars As at As at

March 31, 2022

March 31, 2021

Outstanding for a period

Less than 6 months from the date they are due for payment 247,903 2,071,858
Exceeding 6 months from the date they are due for payment 155,439 91,389
As at the end of the year 403,342 2,163,247
Note 9: Cash & Cash Equivalents

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2022 | March 31, 2021
Cash in Hand 1,075,526 11,387
Balances with Banks
- Current Account 884,177 723,048
- Other Bank Balances 1,959,703 734,435

Sweep Term Deposits 564,045 1,281,461

Total 2,523,748 2,015,896
Note 10: Other Current Assets

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2022 | March 31, 2021

Advances given to Creditors - Servotech Engineers 122,510 -

TDS Receivables 95,166 95,166

Excess GST Tax inputs -SGST 265,412 352,819

Total 483,088 447,985
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Note 11: Share Capital

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Authorized:
10500000 equity shares of Rs.10 each 105,000,000 105,000,000
105,000,000 105,000,000
Subscribed Capital
6490159 Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each
64,901,590 64,901,590
64,901,590 64,901,590
Issued and fully Paid-up:
6490159 Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each
64,901,590 64,901,590
64,901,590 64,901,590
Reconciliation of the number of shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of reporting
period:
Particulars For the year Ended For the year Ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
No. of Amount No. of Amount
Shares inRs. Shares inRs.
Equity Shares
Number of Shares at the Beginning 6,490,159 | 64,901,590 | 6,490,159 | 64,901,590
Add: Equity shares issued - - 121,500,000 | 215,000,000
Balance at the Reporting Date 6,490,159 | 64,901,590 | 27,990,159 | 279,901,590
Note 12: Other Equity
Particulars As at As at

March 31, 2022

March 31, 2021

Retained Earnings

Securities Premium
Profit / (Loss) for the year

Total

Other Comprehensive Income for the Year

Balance at the beginning of the reporting period

(102,426,617) (102,578,225)
22,407,396 22,407,396
(2,464,719) 151,607

(82,483,940) (80,019,222)

56

28" Annual Report 2021-2022




Golden Carpets Limited

Note 13: Borrowings

Particulars

As at
March 31, 2022

As at
March 31, 2021

A. Non-current borrowings

Deferrement Sales Tax Loan (Interest Free) 190,370 190,370
Unsecured Loans from Related Parties
S.K. Naik 46,401,952 46,401,952
Total 46,592,322 46,592,322
Note 14: Provisions
Particulars As at As at

March 31, 2022

March 31, 2021

Prior Period VAT & CST Arrears

Total 46,592,322 46,592,322
Note 15: Trade Payables
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2022 | March 31, 2021

Audit Fees Payable 35,400 25,000
Rent payable - 56,256
Telephone & Internet Charges Payable 920 1,627
Sundry Creditors

(R & A Associates, Bluedart, Xl softech & Smartyarn) 182,376 204,917
Total 218,696 287,800

Note 16: Other Current Financial Liabilities
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2022 | March 31, 2021

Salaries Payable 106,065 106,000
Directors Remunaration Payable 5,039,250 3,971,850
TDS Payable 137,100 -
Calls Unpaid payable on allotment money 2,500 2,500
Advance from Related party : Golden Avenues Pvt Ltd - 1,190,000
Advance from Sundry Debtors 588,411

Total 5,873,326 5,270,350
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Note 17: Revenue from Operations

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2022 | March 31, 2021
Sale of Finished Goods 5,915,842 9,135,405
Total 5,915,842 9,135,405
Note 18: Other Income
Particulars As at As at

March 31, 2022

March 31, 2021

Interest Income
Intrest on Fixed Deposit - Axis Bank

23,197

55,166

Intrest on Sweep term Deposit - Axis Bank
Other Income 710,766 609,524
Foreign Fluctation Profit - -
Total 733,963 664,690
Note 19: Cost of Materials Consumed

Particulars As at As at

March 31, 2022 | March 31, 2021
Inventory at the beginning of the year 26,269,213 28,012,800
Add : Purchases 2,124,298 1,666,844
28,393,511 29,679,644

Less: Inventory at the end of the year 26,452,858 26,269,213
Consumption for the year 2021-22 : 1,940,653 3,410,431
Note 20: Changes in Inventories of Finished Goods

Particulars As at As at

March 31, 2022

March 31, 2021

Inventories at the beginning of the year ( April,21)

Finished goods 2,350,575 2,379,344
Inventories at the end of the Half year ( March,2022)

Finished goods 1,839,999 2,350,575
Change in inventory 510,576 28,769
Note 21: Employee Benefits Expense (AmountinRs.)

Particulars For the year ended | For the year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Salaries and Wages 1,194,698 1,244,068
Directors Remunaration 1,200,000 1,200,000
Company Secretary Remunaration 180,000 75,000
Total 2,574,698 2,519,068
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Note 22: Finance Cost

(AmountinRs.)

Particulars For the year ended | For the year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Bank Charges 6,186 5,478
Total 6,186 5,478
Note 23: Other Expenses
Particulars For the year ended | For the year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Advertisment Expenses 58,897.17 38,801
Annual Custodial Fees & Listing Fees 349,050 345,000
Meetings Expenses 51,180 26,160
Business Promotion Expenses - 74,300
Backcoating & Packing Material 47,514 28,750
Commission and brokarage charges - -
Discount allowed 1,800 54,766
E-Voting Charges 6,180 8,260
Factory & Garden Maintainence 39,922 145,054
Foreign Fluctation Loss - -
Interest & Late Fees - TDS 249 3,452
Laying Material 84,607 104,054
Muncipal & Grampanchayat Taxes 198,576 52,348
Office & Building Maintenance expenses 54,040 24,840
Postage & Courier charges 17,940 6,862
Power & Diesel 304,241 343,837
Printing & Stationery 24,571 23,810
Professional Charges 180,000 205,000
Professional Tax - 5,000
Rent-Office 840,324 761,568
Repair & Maintanance 8,863 7,650
ROC filing fee Expenses 8,400 14,360
Share Transfer Processing fees 63,000 63,000
Staff Welfare Expenses - 18,000
Telephone & Internet Expenses 146,685 123,955
Transport Charges 35,108 48,000
Travelling Expenses 574,250 -
Prior Period Expenditure - VAT & CST Arrears -
Payment to Auditor
Audit fee 65,800 25,000
Total 3,161,197 2,551,827
28" Annual Report 2021-2022 59



Y Golden Carpets Limited

e

Note 24: Earnings Per Share (AmountinRs.)

Particulars For the year ended | For the year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

(i) Net (loss) as per the Statement of Profit &

Loss available for Equity Shareholders (2,464,719) 151,607
(ii) Weighted average number of equity
shares used as denominator for calculating EPS 6,490,159 6,490,159
(iii) Basic and Diluted earnings per share (i/ii)
(0.38) 0.02
(iv) Nominal value of shares
10.00 10.00

Note: 25

First-time Adoption of Ind ASThese individual financial statements of Golden Carpets Ltd., for the
year ended 31st March, 2022, have been prepared in accordance with Ind AS. For the purposes of
transition to Ind AS, the Company has followed the guidance prescribed in Ind AS 101, First-time
Adoption of Indian Accounting Standard, with 1st April, 2020 as the transition date and Indian
GAAP as the previous GAAP. The transition to Ind AS has resulted in changes in the presentation
of the financial statements, disclosures in the notes thereto and accounting policies and principles.
The accounting policies set out in Note 2.1 have been applied in preparing the individual financial
statements for the year ended 31st March, 2022 and the comparative information. An explanation of
how the transition from previous GAAP to Ind AS has affected the Company’s balance sheet and
statement of profitand loss, is set out in Notes 25.20. Examptions on the first-time adoption of Ind AS
availed in Ind AS 101 have been set out in Note 25.1.

Note 25.1 Exemptions availed on First-time Adoptions of Ind AS and exceptions to retrospective
application applied:

Ind AS 101 allows first-time adopters to opt for certain exemptions from and specifies exceptions to
the retrospective application of certain requirements under Ind AS. The Company has accordingly
applied the following exemptions:a. Previous GAAP measure as deemed cost of property, plant
and equipment and intangible assetsThe Company is permitted to continue with the carrying
value of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets measured as per previous GAAP as
deemed cost under Ind AS. The company has opted for the exemption and accordingly has treated
the carrying value of property, plant and equipment as per previous GAAP as deemed cost of
property, plant and equipment and intangible assets respectively on transition date.

Note 25.2 First-time Adoption of Ind ASInd AS 101 requires an entity to reconcile equity, total
comprehensive income and cash flows for prior periods. The followingtables represent the

reconciliations from previous GAAP to Ind AS.
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Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2022
Note: 1

11

1.2

1.3

14

Company Overview

Golden Carpets Limited (the “Company”’) is a public limited Company incorporated on 2nd
December 1993 and its shares are publicly traded on BSE Limited (BSE), in India. The registered
office of the Company is situated at 8-2-596/5/B/1, Road No.10, Banjara Hills, Hyderabad-
500035, Telangana, India.

The Company is principally engaged in manufacturing of carpets.

These financial statements are presented in Indian Rupee with figures rounded off to nearest
rupee except otherwise as indicated.

Basis of Preparation of Accounts

These financial statements are prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards
(Ind AS) under the historical cost convention on the accrual basis, except for certain financial
instruments which are measured at fair values and as per the provisions of the Companies Act,
2013 (‘the Act’). The Ind AS are prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read with Rule 3 of the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and amendments thereto.

The adoption of Ind AS was carried out in accordance with Ind AS 101, First-time Adoption of
Indian Accounting Standards. Reconciliations and descriptions of the effect of the transition
have been summarised in Note 25.2.

Accounting policies have been consistently applied except where a newly issued accounting
standard is initially adopted or a revision to an existing accounting standard requires a change
in the accounting policy hitherto in use. The Company retains the presentationand classification
of items in the financial statements from one period to the next.

Classification of Assets and liabilities as Current and Non-current

The Company has determined its operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose of classification
of current and non-current assets and liabilities. This is based on the nature of product and the
time between the acquisition of inventories for processing and their realization in cash and
cash equivalents. All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per
the Company’s normal operating cycle and other criteria set out in the Schedule 111(Division I1)
to the Companies Act, 2013.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are classified as non-current assets and non-
current liabilities.

Use of Estimates and Judgements

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires the Management
to make estimates, judgements and assumptions. These estimates, judgements and assumptions
affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets and liabilities,
the disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and
reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the period. Application of accounting
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policies that require critical accounting estimates involving complex and subjective judgements
and the use of assumptions in financial statements have been specified in Notel.5 below.
Accounting estimates could change from period to period. Actual results could differ from
estimates. Appropriate changes in estimates are made as the Management becomes aware of
changes in circumstances surrounding the estimates. Changes in estimates are reflected in
financial statements in the period in which the changes are made and, if material, their effects
are disclosed in these notes to the individual financial statements.

1.5 Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgement used in application of Accounting Policies
a. Income Taxes

Significant judgements are involved in determining the provision for Income Taxes,
including amount expected to be paid / recovered for uncertain tax positions. Also refer
Note 6 (Deferred Tax).

b. Property, Plantand Equipment

Property, Plant and Equipment represent a significant proportion of the asset base of the
Company. The charge in respect of periodic depreciation is derived after determining an
estimate of an asset’s expected useful life and the expected residual value at the end of its
life. The useful life and residual values of the Company’s assets are determined by the
Management at the time the asset is acquired and reviewed periodically, including at each
financial year end. The life is based on historical experience with similar assets as well as
anticipation of future events, which may impact their life, such as changes in technology.
(Refer Note 4)

Note 2

2.1 Significant Accounting Policies

2.1.1 Revenue Recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable. Amounts
disclosed as revenue are exclusive of taxes and net of returns, Trade Allowances, Rebates, other
similar allowances, Goods and Service Tax and amounts collected on behalf of third parties, if
any.

The Company recognises revenue when the amount of revenue can be reliably measured, itis
probable that future economic benefits will flow to the Company and specific criteria have been
met for each of the Company’s activities as described below:

2.1.1.a Sale of Goods

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the goods are delivered, and titles have
passed, at which moment all the following conditions are satisfied:

= The Company has transferred to the buyer significant risks and rewards of ownership of
the goods;
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211b

21.1c

212

2.13
2.13.a

The Company retains neither continuing managerial involvement to the degree usually
associated with ownership nor effective control over the goods sold;

The amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

It is probable that economic benefits associated with the transaction will flow to the
Company; and

The costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the transaction can be measured reliably.
Dividend Income

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the Company’s right to receive payment
has been established (provided that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Company and the amount of income can be measured reliably).

Interest Income

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Company and the amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest
income is accrued on a time basis by reference to the principal amount outstanding and at the
effective interest rate. Effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future
cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount
on initial recognition.

Inventories

Inventories are measured at cost and net realizable value, whichever is lower. Net realizable
value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less estimated cost
necessary to make sale. Cost in respect of raw materials and stock in trade are determined on
FIFO basis. Costs in respect of all other Inventories are computed on weighted average basis
method. Finished goods and process stock include cost of conversion and other costs incurred
in acquiring the inventory and bringing them to their present location and condition.

Inventories are written down to net realizable value item by item except where it is appropriate
to group similar or related items. When a decline in the price of materials, indicates that the
cost of the finished products exceeds net realizable value, the materials are written down to
their replacement cost. When the circumstances that previously caused inventories to be
written down below cost no longer exist or when there is clear evidence of an increase in net
realizable value because of changed economic circumstances, the amount of the write-down
is reversed so that the new carrying amount is the lower of the cost and the revised net
realizable value. Inventories are recognised as expense in the period in which the related
revenue is recognised.

Property, Plantand Equipment
Recognition of Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment are tangible items that are held for use in the production or
supply of goods and services, rental to others or for administrative purposes and are expected
to be used during more than one period. The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment
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is recognised as an asset if an only if it is probable that future economic benefits associated
with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.
Freehold land is carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses. All other items of property,
plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses. Cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises:

- Its purchase price, all costs including financial costs till commencement of commercial
production are capitalized to the cost of qualifying assets. CENVAT/Tax credit, if any,
are accounted for by reducing the cost of capital goods;

- Any other costs directly attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition
necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management.

All other repairs and maintenance are charged to profit or loss during the reporting
period in which they are incurred.

2.1.3.b Depreciation of Property, Plant and Equipment

Each part of an item of property, plant and equipment with a cost that is significant in relation
to the total cost of the item is depreciated separately on straight-line method. Parts of plant
and equipment that are technically advised to be replaced at prescribed intervals/ periods of
operation, insurance spares and cost of inspection / overhauling are depreciated separately
based on their specific useful life provided these are of significant amounts. The depreciation
charge for each period is recognised in profit or loss unless it is included in the carrying
amount of another asset. Depreciable amount of an item of property, plant and equipment is
arrived at after deducting estimated residual value. The depreciable amount of an asset is
allocated on a systematic basis over its useful life as disclosed in Note3. The Company reviews
the residual value and useful life at each financial year-end and, if expectations differ from
previous estimates, the residual value and useful lives are changed prospectively and
accounted for as a change in accounting estimate. Depreciation commences when the item of
property, plant and equipment is in the location and condition necessary for it to be capable
of operating in the manner intended by management. Depreciation ceases at the earlier of the
date that the asset is classified as held for sale (or included in adisposal group that is classified
as held for sale) and the date that the asset is derecognized. The Company review the
depreciation method at each financial year- end and if, there has been a significant change in
the expected pattern of consumption of the future economic benefits embodied in the asset, the
method is changed to reflect the changedpattern. Such a change is accounted as a change in
accounting estimate on prospective basis.

2.1.3.cCompensation for Impairment

The Company recognises compensation from third parties for items of property, plant and
equipment that were impaired, lost or given up in profit or loss when the compensation
becomes receivable.

2.1.3.d Derecognition of Property, Plantand Equipment

The carrying amount of an item of property, plant and equipment is derecognized on disposal
or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. The gain or loss
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from the derecognition of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised in profit or
loss when the item is derecognized.

2.1.3.eTransitionto Ind AS

214

On transition to Ind AS, the Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all of
its property, plant and equipment recognised as at the beginning of 1st April, 2020 (transition
date) measured as per the previous GAAP and use that carrying value as the deemed cost of
property, plant and equipment.

Leases

The Company determines an arrangement as a lease based on the substance of the arrangement
after assessing whether the arrangement is dependent on the use of specific asset or assets
and whether the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset or assets. The Company classifies
all leases into finance and operating leases at the earlier of the date of the lease agreement and
the date of commitment by the parties to the principal provisions of the lease. A lease is
classified as a finance lease if it transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership. A lease is classified as an operating lease if it does not transfer substantially all
the risks and rewards incidental to ownership. The Company has applied accounting for
leases for assets taken on lease. The Company has not given assets on lease.

2.1.4. a Finance lease as lessee

The Company recognises property leased under finance leases at the lower of the fair value of
the lease property and present value of minimum lease payments. Lease payments are
discounted at the interest rate implicit in the lease to calculate present value of minimum lease
payments. Initial direct costs are added to the amount recognised as an asset. Minimum lease
payments are apportioned between the finance charge and the reduction of the outstanding
liability. Contingent rents are charged as expenses in the period in which they are incurred.
The leased property is depreciated as per the depreciation policy specified in Note 2.1.3.

2.1.4.b Operating lease as lessee

215

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease
term, except where another systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in
which economic benefits from the leased asset are consumed or the payments to the lessor are
structured to increase in line with expected general inflation to compensate for the lessor’s
expected inflationary cost increases. Where payments to the lessor are structured to increase
in line with expected general inflation to compensate for the lessor’s expected inflationary
cost increases, lease expense is recognised based on the contractual lease payments. Contingent
rentals arising under operating leases are recognised as an expense in the period in which
they are incurred.

Employee Benefits

2.1.5.aShort-term Employee Benefits
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2.1.7

Short-term employee benefits are employee benefits (other than termination benefits) that are
expected to be settled wholly before twelve months after the end of the reporting period in
which the employees render the related service. Short-term employee benefits include salaries,
wages, social security contributions, bonus, paid annual leave etc. Liabilities recognised in
respect of short-term employee benefits are measured at the undiscounted amount of the
benefits expected to be paid in

Foreign currency transactions and translations

Functional currency of the Company is Indian rupee. The financial statements have been
presented under its functional currency. Any transaction that is denominated in a currency
other than the functional currency is regarded as foreign currency transaction. All foreign
currency transactions are recorded, on initial recognition in the functional currency, by apply
to the foreign currency amount the spot exchange rate between the functional currency and
the foreign currency at the date of the transaction. In case of consideration received in advance,
the exchange rate prevailing on the date of receipt or payment of advance is considered when
subsequently the related asset is given up or received to the extent of advance consideration.

At the end of the reporting period:

1.

2.18

Foreign currency monetary items are translated using the exchange rate for immediate delivery
at the end of the reporting period,;

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction; and

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using
the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was measured.

Exchange difference arising on the settlement of monetary items or on translating monetary
items at rates different from those at which they were translated on initial recognition during
the period or in previous financial statements are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they arise.

Borrowing Costs

Interest and other costs that the Company incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds
are identified as borrowing costs. The Company capitalises borrowing costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset as part of the
cost of that asset. Other borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which
itisincurred. A qualifying asset is an asset that necessarily takes a substantial period of time
to get ready for its intended use. The Company identifies the borrowings into specific
borrowings and general borrowings. Specific borrowings are borrowings that are specifically
taken for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset. General borrowings include all other
borrowings and also the amount outstanding as on the balance sheet date of specific
borrowings. Borrowing cost incurred actually on specific borrowings are capitalised to the
cost of the qualifying asset. For general borrowings, the company determines the amount of
borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation by applying a capitalisation rate to the expenditures
on the qualifying asset based on the weighted average of the borrowing costs applicable to
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general borrowings. The capitalisation on borrowing costs commences when the company
incurs expenditure for the asset, incurs borrowing cost and undertakes activities that are
necessary to prepare the asset for its intended use or sale. The capitalisation of borrowing
costs is suspended during extended periods in which active development of a qualifying
asset is suspended. The capitalisation of borrowing costs ceases whensubstantially all the
activities necessary to prepare the qualifying asset for its intended use or sale are complete.

2.1.9.aRecognition, classification, measurements and DE recognition of Financial Assets

Financial assets include cash and cash equivalents, trade and other receivables, investments
in securities and other eligible current and non-current assets. At initial recognition, all financial
assets are measured at fair value. Such financial assets are subsequently classified and
measured under one of the following three categories according to the purpose for which they
are held and contractual Cash Flow characteristics. Financial assets are reclassified only
when the purpose for which they are held changes. Financial assets are derecognised when
the right to cash flows from the financial asset expires or when the financial asset is transferred
resulting in transfer of significant risks and rewards to the buyer. Where significant risks and
rewards are retained on transfer of a financial asset, the financial asset is not derecognised,
and a financial liability is recognised for the consideration received. Where the transfer of
financial asset results in partial transfer of risks and rewards, the asset is derecognised if the
buyer obtains the right to sell the asset to other party unilaterally without attaching any
conditions otherwise the financial asset continues to the recognised to the extent of continuing
involvement.

2.1.9.a.i Financial Assets at amortised cost

Financial assets at amortised cost, at thedate of initial recognition, are held to collectcontractual
cash flows of principal and interest on principal amount outstanding on specified dates.
These financial assets are intended to be held until maturity. Therefore, they are subsequently
measured at amortised cost by applying the Effective Interest Rate (EIR) method to the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset. The EIR amortisation is included as interest income in
the profit or loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognised in the profit or loss.

2.1.9.a.iiFinancial asset at Fair VValue through Other Comprehensive Income (FVOCI)

Financial asset at FVOCI, at the date of initial recognition, are held to collect contractual cash
flows of principal and interest on principal amount outstanding on specified dates, as well as
held for selling. Therefore, they are subsequently measured at each reporting date at fair
value, with all fair value movements recognised in Other Comprehensive Income (OCI). Interest
income calculated using the Effective Interest Rate (EIR) method, impairment gain or loss and
foreign exchange gain or loss are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. On
derecognition of the asset, cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in Other
Comprehensive Income is reclassified from the OCI to Statement of Profit and Loss.

2.1.9.a.iii Financial assets at Fair VValue throughProfit or Loss (FVPL)

Financial Assets at FVPL, at the date of initial recognition, are held for trading, or which are
measured neither at Amortised Cost nor at Fair Value through OCI. Therefore, they are
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subsequently measured at each reporting date at fair value, with all fair value movements
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

2.1.9.b Impairment of Financial Assets

The Company recognizes the impairment on financial assets based on the expected credit loss
model for the financial assets which are not measured at fair value through profit or loss. In
case of trade receivables, the Company follows a simplified approach wherein an amount
equal to lifetime ECL is measured and recognized as loss allowance. In case of other financial
assets expected credit losses are measuredat an amount equal to 12-month ECL unless there
has been significant increase in credit risk from initial recognition in which case these are
measured at lifetime expected credit loss. The amount of expected credit losses or reversal that
is required to adjust the loss allowance at the reporting date to the amount that is required to
be recognized is recognized as an impairment gain or loss in the profit and loss for the period.

2.1.9.cRecognition, classification, measurement and DE recognition of financial liabilities

Financial liabilities include long-term and short- term loans and borrowings, trade and other
payables and other eligible current and non- current liabilities. All financial liabilities are
recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and other payables,
net of directly attributable transaction costs. The Company derecognises a financial liability
when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or expires.

After initial recognition, financial liabilities are classified under one of the following two
categories:

2.1.9.c.Financial liabilities at amortised cost

After initial recognition, such financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised
cost by applying the Effective Interest Rate (EIR) method to the gross carrying amount of the
financial liability. The EIR amortisation is included in finance expense in the statement profit
or loss.

2.1.9.c.iiFinancial liabilities at Fair VValuethrough Profit or Loss (FVPL)

Financial Liabilities at FVPL are those which are designated as such on initial recognition, or
which are held for trading. Fair value gains / losses attributable to changes in own credit risk
is recognised in OCI. These gains/losses are not subsequently transferred to Statement of
Profitand Loss. All other changes in fair value of such liabilities are recognised in the Statement
of Profitand Loss.

2.1.10 Off-setting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the
balance sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts
and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise assets and settle liabilities
simultaneously.

2.1.11 Earnings per Share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit or loss for the period attributable
to the equity holders of the company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares
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outstanding during the year. For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net
profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted average
number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive
potential equity shares. (Refer Note 23)

2.1.12 Impairment of Non-Financial Assets

The Company reviews the carrying amounts of its Property, Plant and Equipment, including
Capital Work in progress of a “Cash Generating Unit” (CGU) at the end of each reporting
period to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an
impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the assets is estimated
in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any). When it is not possible to
estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Company estimates the recoverable
amount of the Cash Generating Unit to which the asset belongs.

Recoverable amount is determined:

i)
i)

In case of individual asset, at higher of the fair value less cost to sell and value in use; and

In case of cash generating unit (a Company of assets that generates identified, independent
cash flows), at the higher of the cash generating unit’s fair value less cost to sell and the value
in use.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash generating unit) is estimated to be less than its
carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is reduced to its
recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognized immediately in the Statement of Profit
and Loss.

2.1.13 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

The Company recognizes provisions when a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a
result of a past event exists and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic
benefits will be required to settle such obligation and the amount of such obligation can be
reliably estimated. If the effect of time value of money is material, provisions are discounted
using a current pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability.
When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognized
as a finance cost. A disclosure for a contingent liability is made when there is a possible
obligation or a present obligation that may, but probably will not require an outflow of resources
embodying economic benefits or the amount of such obligation cannot be measured reliably.
When there is a possible obligation or a present obligation in respect of which likelihood of
outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is remote, no provision or disclosure is
made. Contingent assets are not recognised but disclosed where an inflow of economic benefits
is probable.

2.1.14 Intangible Assets

The Company identifies an identifiable non-monetary asset without physical substance as an
intangible asset. The Company recognises an intangible asset if it is probable that expected
future economic benefits attributable to the asset will flow to the entity and the cost of the asset
can be measured reliably. An intangible asset is initially measured at cost unless acquired in
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a business combination in which case an intangible asset is measured at its fair value on the
date of acquisition. The Company identifies research phase and development phase of an
internally generated intangible asset. Expenditure incurred on research phase is recognised
asan expense in the profit or loss for the period in which incurred. Expenditure on development
phase are capitalised only when the Company is able to demonstrate the technical feasibility
of completing the intangible asset, the ability to use the intangible asset and the development
expenditure can be measured reliably. The Company subsequently measures all intangible
assets at cost less accumulated amortisation less accumulated impairment. An intangible
asset isamortised on a straight-line basis over its useful life. Amortisation commences when
the asset is in the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the
manner intended by management. Amortisation ceases at the earlier of the date that the asset
is classified as held for sale (or included in a disposal group that is classified as held for sale)
and the date that the asset is derecognised. The amortisation charge for each period is recognised
in profit or loss unless the charge is a part of the cost of another asset. The amortisation period
and method are reviewed at each financial year end. Any change in the period or method is
accounted for as a change in accounting estimate prospectively. The Company derecognises
an intangible asset on its disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its
use or disposal and any gain or loss on derecognition is recognised in profit or loss as gain /
loss on DE recognition of asset.

2.1.14.a Transitionto Ind AS

On transition to Ind AS, the Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all of
its property, plant and equipment recognised as at the beginning of 1st April, 2020 (transition
date) measured as per the previous GAAP and use that carrying value as the deemed cost of
property, plant and equipment.

2.1.15 Income Taxes

Income tax expense represents the sum of tax currently payable and deferred tax. Tax is
recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that it relates to items recognised directly in
equity or in other comprehensive income.

2.1.15.a Current Tax

Current Tax includes provision for income tax computed at the tax rate applicable as per
Income Tax Act, 1961. Tax on profit for the period is determined on the basis of estimated
taxable income and tax credits computed in accordance with the provision of the relevant tax
laws and based on expected outcome of assessments / appeals.

2.1.15.b Deferred Tax

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities in the balance sheet and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation
of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are recognisedfor all deductible temporary differences, unabsorbed losses
and tax credits to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which those deductible temporary differences, unabsorbed losses and tax credits will
be utilised. The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of financial year
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and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are
measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is
expected to be settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates and tax laws that have been
substantively enacted by the balance sheet date. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset
when there is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities
and when they relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority and the Company
intends to settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.

2.1.16 Assets Held for Sale

The Company classifies assets as held for sale if their carrying amounts will be recovered
principally through a sale rather than through continuing use of the assets and actions required
to complete such sale indicate that it is unlikely that significant changes to the plan to sell will
be made or that the decision to sell will be withdrawn. Also, such assets are classified as held
for sale only if the management expects to complete the sale within one year from the date of
classification. Assets classified as held for sale are measured at the lower of their carrying
amount and the fair value less cost to sell. Non- current assets are not depreciated or amortized.

2.1.17 Fair Value Measurement

The Company measures financial instruments at fair value in accordance with the accounting
policies mentioned above. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid
to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement
date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the
asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

- In the principal market for asset or liability, or
- In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for asset or liability

All assets and liabilities for which fair value ismeasured or disclosed in the financial statements
are categorized within the fair value hierarchy that categorizes into three levels, described as
follows, the inputs to valuation techniques used to measure value. The fair value hierarchy
gives the highest priority to quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
(Level 1 inputs) and the lowest priority to unobservable inputs (Level 3 inputs).

Level 1 — quoted market prices in active markets foridentical assets or liabilities

Level 2— inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly

Level 3—inputs that are unobservable for the assetor liability

For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the financial statements at fair value on a
recurring basis, the Company determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in
the hierarchy by re- assessing categorization at the end of each reporting period and discloses
the same.
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2.1.19 Dividend

The Company recognises a liability for dividends to equity holders of the Company when the
dividend is approved by the shareholders. A corresponding amount is recognised directly in

equity.
2.1.20 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash comprises cash on hand and demand deposits with banks. Cash equivalents are short-
term balances (with an original maturity of three months or less from the date of acquisition),
which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and
short-termdeposits, as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts as they are considered
an integral part of the Company’s cash management.

2.1.21 Statement of Cash flows

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit / (loss) before tax is adjusted
for the effects of transactions of non cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of past or future
cash receipts or payments. The cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities
of the Company are segregated based on the available information.

As per Report of even date attached

For M/s. TRM & Associates For and on Behalf of Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants
FRN No0.009224S

Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-
Rammurthy Telukuntla Srikrishna Naik Meena Kerur
Partner Managing Director Director
M.No0.024789

UDIN:22024789AIBAZN7219

Place : Hyderabad
Date : 16.05.2022
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28"Annual General Meeting
GOLDEN CARPETSLTD
Registered Office: 8-2-596/5/B/1, ROAD NO.10, BANJARA HILLS,

Hyderabad - 500 034

Phone: 040-66771111; Fax: 040-23351576
Website: www.goldencarpets.com, Email: goldencarpetsitd@gmail.com

CIN: L17220TG1993PLC016672

ATTENDANCE SLIP

1/We hereby record my 7/ our presence at the 28" Annual General Meeting of the Golden Carpets Ltd
held on Friday, 30thday of September 2022at 09:00AM at Hotel Marriott, Tank Bund Road, Opposite
Hussain Sagar Lake, Hyderabad- 500080, Telangana, India.

For Physical Holding

For Electronic Form (Demat) NSDL / CDSL

No. of shares

Folio No.

DP ID

CLIENT ID

NAME OF THE MEMBER 7/ JOINT MEMBER(S) (IN BLOCK CAPITALS):

Signature of the member/ Joint member(s) / proxy

Note: Please complete the Attendance Slip and hand over at the entrance of the meeting hall
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PROXY FORM
28t"Annual General Meeting
GOLDEN CARPETSLTD
CIN: L17220TG1993PLC016672
Registered Office: 8-2-596/5/B/1, ROAD NO.10, Banjara Hills, Hyderabad — 500 034

Phone: 040-66771111; Fax: 040-23351576
Website: www.goldencarpets.com, Email: goldencarpetsltd@gmail.com
Pursuant to section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 19(3) of the

Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

Name of the member(s)

Registered Address
Email ID

Folio No./ Client ID
DPID

I/We, being the member(s) of shares of the above named company, hereby appoint

1 Name
Address:
Email 1D

2 Name
Address
Email ID
Signature : or failing him 7/ her

3 Name
Address
Email 1D
Signature : or failing him 7/ her

as my/ our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me/ us and on my/ our behalf at the Annual General
Meeting of the company, to be held onFriday, 30th September 2022at 9:00 AM at Hotel Marriott, Tank Bund
Road, Opposite Hussain Sagar Lake, Hyderabad- 500080, Telangana, Indiaat any adjournment thereof in

respect of such resolutions asare indicated below:
S. No. Particulars FOR | AGAINST
ORDINARY BUSINESSES

1 | Adoption of Financial Statements for the financial year ended 31March 2022

2 | Appointment of Ms. Meena Bhushan Kerur as a Director liable to retire by rotation

Signed this day of September 2022 Affix
Revenue
stamp
Signature of Shareholder Signature of Proxy holder(s)

Note: This form of proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed and deposited at the Registered Office of the
Company, not less than 48 hours before the commencement of the Meeting.
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GOLDEN CARPETS LTD

CIN: L17220TG1993PLC016672

Registered Office: 8-2-596/5/B/1, Road No.10, Banjara Hills, Hyderabad- 500 034
Phone: 040-66771111; Fax: 040-23351576

Website: www.goldencarpets.com, Email:goldencarpetsltd@gmail.com

POSTAL BALLOT PAPER
(Pursuant to Section 110 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 22 of the
Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014)

Name of the first named
shareholder (in Block letters)

Postal Address

Registered Folio No. /
*Client ID No. (*Applicable
to investors holding shares
in dematerialized form)

Class of shares Equity

I hereby exercise my vote in respect of the ordinary / special resolutions for the business enumerated
below and as stated in the Notice of 28"Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held on
Friday, 30"September 2022 at 9:00 AM (IST) at Hotel Marriott, Tank Bund Road, Opposite Hussain
Sagar Lake, Hyderabad- 500080, Telangana, Indiaby recording my/ assent or dissent to the said
resolution by placing tick () at the appropriate box below:

S. No.

Item No.

No. of
shares

I/we assent
(FOR

I/we dissent
(AGAINST)

ORDINARY BUSINESSES

Adoption of Financial Statements for the financial
year ended 31t March 2022:

To receive, consider and adopt the Audited
Financial Statements for the financial year ended
31%t March 2022 along with the Auditors’ Report,
Directors’ Report and schedules thereon.

To appoint a director in place of Ms. Meena
Bhushan Kerur, (DIN: 02454919) Director of the
Company who retires by rotation and being
eligible, offers herself for re-appointment:To
appointa Director in place of Ms. Meena Bhushan
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Kerur(DIN: 02454919)who retires by rotation and
being eligible offers herself for re-
appointment.Therefore, members are requested to
consider and if thought fit, to pass the following
resolution as an ordinary resolution:

RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions
of Section 152 and other applicable provisions of
the Companies Act, 2013, Ms. Meena Bhushan
Kerur (DIN: 02454919), who retires by rotation,
be and is hereby re-appointed as Director liable
to retire by rotation.”

Place:
Date:

Signature of the member
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